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government organizations to progress

by optimizing their information

systems efficiency.
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Corporate Profile
NG W

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited (and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as “C&T” or the “Group”) is a leading Information
Technology (“IT”) software and services provider in the region involved
in the design, development, delivery and operations of total IT solutions
that meet customers’ business requirements.

Founded in 1991, C&T has been publicly listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (Stock Code: SEHK 00046) since 1998.
The Group’s headquarters are based in Hong Kong with offices as well as
research and service centers established in Beijing, Shanghai, Nanjing
and Shenzhen.

The Group has been building its business on a vision to deliver
competitive advantages for enterprises and government organizations
to progress by optimizing their information systems efficiency. Over the
decades, C&T has a long-standing track record in delivering award-
winning, large-scale IT solutions for numerous prestigious corporations
and government organizations.

Building on its competence in applying advanced IT technologies
and proven track records, C&T is providing all round IT solutions
and services comprising systems and network integration services,
application development and support services, enterprise application
software, operation and business process outsourcing services as well as
online e-Government and e-Business services.
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Corporate Information (continued)
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Financial Highlights
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For the year ended 31 December
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Dear Shareholders,

| am glad to report that the Group’s overall revenue increased by 15.5%
to HK$391.2 million (2010: HK$338.9 million) and the consolidated net
profit attributable to shareholders achieved a 5.1% growth to HK$51.5
million (2010: HK$49.1 million).

During the reporting period, the Group repurchased approximately 6.7
million shares at an averaged price of HK$1.73 per share. The basic
earnings per share, after taken into account of the share repurchase,
is 21.11 HK cents (2010: 19.89 HK cents) representing an increase
of 6.1% over the previous year. The Group generated HK$56.5 million
cash flow from operations and maintained strong financial position
with approximately HK$321.1 million net cash on hand as of end of
December 2011 (2010: HK$298.5 million).

In view of the sustained healthy financial position, the Board
recommended the distribution of a final dividend of 7 HK cents (2010: 6
HK cents). Including the 6 HK cents per share interim dividend, the full-
year dividends for the reporting period are 13 HK cents, which is 8.3%
over the previous year (2010: 12 HK cents).

BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT

The increase in revenue was mainly generated from the Group’s
Integration Services!?! business with the sales of third party products
in China. The gross profit margin of such business is relatively low and
hence caused an overall decrease in gross profit margin during the
reporting period.

To improve the long-term contribution of the Integration Services
business to the Group’s overall profitability, the Group will actively
develop value-added services and focus more on selling of higher margin
advance technology products. Leveraging the Group’s strong technical
competency in software applications and solutions services, the Group
will transform its Integration Services business from a hardware-
intensive business to a service and solutions oriented business. While
the Management is optimistic of the substantial long-term value of such
transformation, it is anticipated that there would be impact on the near
term revenue and contributions from the Integration Services business.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FE®RE(E)

The Group’s Solutions Services 2! business continuously generated stable
revenue from the Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional
Services B! (“SOA-QPS2”) and other long-term IT services contracts
with the Hong Kong SAR Government and other large commercial
organizations. Furthermore, the order backlog for solutions services
carried forward to year 2012 was also strong.

As to the Government Electronic Trading Services @ (“GETS"), through
implementation of various promotional programs, introduction of
new services and expansion of service network, the Group managed
to increase its overall market share in the GETS market with stable
transaction income despite a decrease in overall import/export trading
activities of Hong Kong SAR during 2011.

Leveraging its GETS customer base and established e-Service platform,
the Group has been launching various new Cloud ! applications
and services. The Management envisages that the expanding Cloud
applications and services will broaden the Group’s revenue source.

The Group’s business process outsourcing © (“BPO") business has also
contributed stable revenue to the Group during the reporting period. As
of the report date, the Group is in the process of finalizing the renewal of
a multi-year BPO contract with a leading trade promotion organization in
Hong Kong. The Management is optimistic that such renewed contract
will bring stable revenue stream to the Group in the coming years and
solidify our market position to capture additional BPO businesses.

During 2011, more customer orders were secured for the Group’s new
generation Human Resource Information System (“HRIS”) product suite.
The amendment in the Employment Ordinance on minimum wages in
Hong Kong SAR during the period also triggered additional products
and services opportunities for the Group. Coupled with the healthy and
growing maintenance services income from its strong customer base,
the Group’s Application Products 7 business contributed satisfactorily to
the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE(E)

The Group has been continuously investing in research and development
resources to enrich the new product suite and has completed the
development of a Cloud version of HRIS in order to capture unexplored
market segments and broaden revenue streams of the Group.

Footnotes:

[1]

[2]

[3]

[4]

[5]

(6]

[7]

The Group’s Integration Services business covers the provision of IT systems and
network infrastructure with related design, implementation and on-going support
services.

The Group’s Selutions Services business includes (a) Development Services for the
provision of IT solutions implementation and application software development; and
(b) Managed Services for the provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure
outsourcing services.

The Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 2 (SOA-QPS?2) is part
of the HKSAR Government’s IT outsourcing strategy aiming to enlarge the delivery
capacity for IT services; accelerate the delivery of IT solutions; and create a market
of sufficient size to encourage the further development of the IT industry locally. The
Group was awarded as one of the selected services providers for four SOA-QPS2
contracts from the HKSAR Government in July 2009. These contracts will cover 4
different types of IT professional services, namely pre-implementation & independent
program/project management services; on-going services; implementation &
combined system development services; and information security services on an as
and when required basis. Such arrangement will last for 4 years till July 2013. During
the contract period, individual demands in the form of assignment proposals will
be invited by government departments for competitive bidding among the services
providers of the relevant service category. The HKSAR Government estimated that it
would draw assignment-based services from these contracts costing about HK$858
million.

Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license from the HKSAR Government
for the provision of front-end Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”) for
processing certain official trade-related documents. The Group’s GETS license was
renewed in 2009 for operation of additional 7 years until the end of 2016.

Cloud computing is the delivery of computing as a service rather than a product,
whereby shared resources, software, and information are provided to computers
and other devices as a utility (like the electricity grid) over a network (typically the
Internet).

The Group'’s BP0 business comprises the provision of services for the operations and
support of specific business functions or processes of customers. On top of e-Services
related BPO services, the Group has also entered into a multi-year BPO contract with
a leading trade promotion organization in Hong Kong since 2009.

The Group's Application Products business comprises the provision of business
application solutions for enterprises including (i) HRM as well as related application
software and payroll outsourcing services; (ii) e-procurement and e-tendering and
related services; and (iii) the document and workflow management solutions.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FE®RE(E)

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, amid global economy uncertainty, businesses would
be indecisive in their IT investments. This sentiment presents significant
challenges to the Group’s operating environment. On the other hand, the
trend of increasing acceptance on the usage of Cloud applications and
services has provided the Group with new opportunities that the Group is
well prepared to capture. The management is optimistic that the Group’s
strong financial and market positions will enable the Group to take
advantage of the arising opportunities and to cope with the upcoming
challenges.

BETTERMENT IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

It has long been a commitment of the Group to continuously uplift
its corporate governance with the best endeavor. After deliberate
consideration, the Board decided that it is now the appropriate time
to separate the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer ("CEO")
and to reinforce its full compliance to Code on Corporate Governance
Practices. It is my pleasure to announce that Mr. Yan King Shun, an
executive director of the Company since 28 July 2008, will be appointed
as the CEO of the Group effective from 1 April 2012. At the same time, |
will continue to serve as the Chairman of the Group. Please refer to the
related announcement for detail.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2011, the Group had pledged certain of its investment
properties with a carrying value of HK$26.8 million (2010: HK$24.0
million) and bank balances of HK$31.8 million (2010: HK$37.6 million)
to secure certain general bank facilities including interest-bearing
borrowings, guarantee/performance bonds facilities granted to the Group
in aggregate of HK$113.7 million (2010: HK$174.2 million) of which
HK$27.8 million (2010: HK$29.2 million) had been utilized as of 31
December 2011.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FERE(E)

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposits of HK$31.8 million) was HK$311.8 million (2010:
HK$287.5 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. Save as disclosed in note 27 to this report, the Group
has not adopted any hedging policies, as these currencies carry low
exchange fluctuation risks.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$22.5 million (2010: HK$26.5 million). The Group's
current ratio representing current assets divided by current liabilities was
3.3 (2010: 3.1) and the gearing ratio, representing total liabilities divided
by total assets, was 26.7% (2010: 28.3%).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The remuneration policies adopted for the year ended 31 December
2011 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2010 Annual
Report. As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed approximately
373 full time employees and 18 contract-based employees (31
December 2010: 368 full time employees and 33 contract-based
employees).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FE®RE(E)

DIVIDEND AND BOOK CLOSE

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK7 cents (2010:
HK6 cents) per ordinary share payable to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 25 May 2012.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
15 May 2012 to Thursday, 17 May 2012 (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote
at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 14 May
2012. In addition, the Register of Members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 23 May 2012 to Friday, 25 May 2012 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend, all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars, Tricor Tengis
Limited, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 May
2012. During such periods, no share transfer will be effected.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company
the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2011,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and the Management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Directors and Senior Management
EENENEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 50, the founder, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, is responsible for the business development, corporate
strategies, company policies and overall management of the Group. Ir.
Ng graduated with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Computer Science
from the University of Manchester in the United Kingdom in 1984 and
has over 25 years of experience in IT industry. Before establishing the
Company, Ir. Ng held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-
Packard Asia Pacific Ltd. and Sun Hung Kai (China) Ltd. Ir. Ng is the
Honorary Fellow of Vocational Training Council and the Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries and a fellow of the Hong
Kong Computer Society and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He
is a Founding Chairman of the Hong Kong Information and Software
Industry Association, Chairman of the Advisory Committee for the
Department of Electronic Engineering of the City University of Hong
Kong and Member of the Advisory Committee for the Department of
Computer Science of the University of Hong Kong and the Department
of Computing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ir. Ng was also
the awardees of “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong”, the “Ten
Outstanding Young Persons Award of Hong Kong” and “Directors of the
Year Awards”.

Mr. Yan King Shun, aged 50, is in charge of the Group’s Services
Division. Mr. Yan has over 25 years of experience in the IT industry
and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Computer Society. Before joining the
Group in 2000, Mr. Yan was the Chief Operating Officer of Tradelink
Electronic Commerce Ltd. He also held senior management positions in
large IT and electronic services companies including Accenture. Mr. Yan
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
Degree in Business Administration in 1985 and received executive
education for global leadership from the Harvard Business School in
1998.

To reinforce its compliance to Code on Corporate Governance Practices
as provided in the Listing Rules to separate the responsibilities of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer by two individuals, with effect
from 1 April 2012, Ir. Ng will relinquish his role as the Chief Executive
Officer and remains as the Chairman of the Group; and Mr. Yan will
be appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and responsible for overall
operations of the Group.

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, aged 50, is responsible for policy making,
finance and administration strategies of the Group. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of
experience in finance, administration and planning in the IT industry.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions
in IBM and its associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung graduated
from the Simon Fraser University in Canada with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration in 1983.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EENGREEEE)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, aged 63, joined the Board in 1998. Mr. Ha has
involved in the financial industry for over 30 years and has substantial
experience in corporate finance and corporate development. Mr. Ha is
an executive director and Chief Executive Officer of Value Convergence
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 821).

Professor Matthew K. 0. Lee, Ph.D., aged 52, joined the Board in 1998.
Professor Lee is the Associate Dean (Research, Postgraduate and
Executive Education) and Chair Professor of Information Systems and
E-Commerce at the College of Business of the City University of Hong
Kong (the “University”). Professor Lee is also the Founding Director of
the DBA Programme at the University. He holds a number of university
degrees including BEng (1st Class Honours) in Electronic Engineering,
MSc in Software Engineering, Ph.D. in Computer Science, MBA, LLB,
and LLM in Corporate and Commercial Law. He is a graduate of the
Internet Law Summer Program at Harvard Law School. Professor Lee
has substantial experience and published widely in leading research
journals. He is a professional member of British Computer Society, a
Chartered Engineer (UK Engineering Council) and a Barrister-at-Law
both in Hong Kong SAR and England & Wales. Professor Lee was a
Founding Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Computer Society e-Business
Special Interest Group. Professor Lee is an Assessor of the Innovative
and Technology Commission for IT and electronics projects, a member
of the Hong Kong Research Grant Council (RGC) Business Studies
Panels and a member of the Advisory Committee on Human Resources
Development in the Financial Services Sector. He is an independent
non-executive director of World Wide Touch Technology (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 1282).

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 58, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice as managing partner of Messrs. Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants since 1987. Mr. Ting is
a member of the 9th & 10th Chinese People Political & Consultative
Conference, Fujian. He is now a non-executive director of Chow Sang
Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code: 116) and holds
independent non-executive directorship in six other listed companies
namely, China SCE Property Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1966),
Dongyue Group Limited (Stock Code: 189), JLF Investment Company
Limited (Stock Code: 472), Texhong Textile Group Limited (Stock Code:
2678), Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (Stock Code:
1666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EENEREEEE)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Allen, aged 47, is in charge of overall technology development
as well as the e-Services and Application Products businesses of the
Group. Mr. Lee has more than 20 years of experience in IT business and
technical management. He has served the Group for about 10 years.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree
in Electrical and Electronic Engineering in 1987 and received a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of Hong Kong in
1996.

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, Derek, aged 48, is in charge of overall operation
improvement and the Solutions Services business of the Group.
Mr. Cheung has over 25 years of experience in IT and consulting
business ranging from software development to enterprise solutions
implementation and is one of the founders of Y&A Professional
Services Ltd (the “Y&A”). Mr. Cheung joined the Group in 2006 when
Y&A became a subsidiary of the Group. Before Y&A, he held various
consulting positions in IBM in Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Cheung
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
Degree in Computer Science in 1985 and an Executive Master Degree in
Business Administration in 2011.

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 38, is the Financial Controller of the Group and
the Secretary of the Company. He has over 15 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, finance, and business advisory. Before joining the
Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company and
has worked as a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree
in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong, Steve, aged 46, is in charge of the sales and
marketing as well as other strategic development aspects of the Group.
Mr. Yeung joined the Group in 1998 and has more than 20 years of
IT experience in sales and business development. He graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Computer Studies in 1988 and received a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 1999.
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Corporate Governance Report
LEERTE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practice (the “CG
code”) as stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) during the reporting year except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. As of the report date, the Company did not have
a separate chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Ng Cheung
Shing (“Mr. Ng”) currently holds both positions.

In order to reinforce its compliance to Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as provided in the Listing Rules to separate the responsibilities
of the chairman and chief executive officer by two individuals, with effect
from 1 April 2012, Mr. Ng will relinquish his role as the chief executive
officer and remains as the chairman of the Group; and Mr. Yan King
Shun, who is currently an executive director, will be appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Group.

The CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Independent non-executive directors of the Company do not have a
specific term of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the provisions of the bye-laws of the Company. The
Company therefore considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

THE BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises three executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Yan King Shun

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (F)

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including non-executive directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three year in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws and the CG Code.

The directors’ biographical information is set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 12 to 14.

PRINCIPAL FUNCTIONS

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group’s overall strategy,
annual budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement
of directors, significant contracts and transactions as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the
daily operations and administration to the Company’s management.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management to facilitate them to
make informed decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties,
are allowed to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Board
held at least four regularly meetings at approximately quarterly interval
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operational matters and
financial performance of the Group. Attendance of each director at the
Board meetings is set out below:
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Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HEEE
RE ] HE R
Executive directors: HITES .
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing RRBEA 4/4
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny IS =g it 3/4
Mr. Yan King Shun AFRELXE 4/4
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BRiRLE 4/4
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TRH T HIR 3/4
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRESAE 4/4
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRE (E)

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee formed under the Board, with each
performing different functions.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004
and comprises of three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen and two executive Directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung
Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the chairman
of Remuneration Committee.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to review and recommend to the Board, in consultation the
chairman and chief executive officer, the remuneration policy and
packages of the directors and senior management;

o to review and recommend the performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

o to review and recommend the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss of
termination of their office or appointment;

° to review and recommend compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct; and

o to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEERBRE (HE)
The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year. HMMEE@FFERIRITR@FH - UTAE
Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below: Xi%ﬁr‘@; ZIER
Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend
HESE
RE TR E
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing SRBLE 5/5
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFEAE 4/5
Independent non-executive directors: BUEHITES .
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BERRLE 5/5
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR LHIF 4/5
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRESLAE 5/5
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEES

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and REHZEER_TZTNFNAZ+=HK -
comprises of the three independent non-executive directors, namely, H=ZBIIERITESNEHRLEE THE
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung ~ HUIX R T RIBAEEURMERITESNR KB
Huel, Stephen and two executive directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung FERRSHEEMEN  BERERREREZESG
Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the chairman ~ REEFE ©

of the Nomination Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include: REZEC T BHERIE

e to develop and maintain a formal and transparent process for the ® ZERU#FARZARBEZEESS
appointment and re-appointment of members of the Board; B 2 IEX KIERRIR T

e to recommend the appointment and re-appointment of directors; ® EBREZARBEZAEE R
and

o to review the independence of independent non-executive .
directors, and to ensure that the Board comprises at least one-
third independent non-executive directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EEERHE (F)

Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

UTREEFHRER BN

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HEER
R A HERE
Executive directors: HITES .
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing RRBLE 5/5
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny R=FTE 4/5
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BERIELE 5/5
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR HIR 4/5
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRESRE 5/5

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999 and during the
reporting period, the three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen are the members of the committee and Mr. Ting was
elected as the chairman of Audit Committee.

The principal duties and roles of the Audit Committee include:

° to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation of dismissal of
that auditors;

° to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity;

° to develop and implement policy on the engagement of external
auditors to supply non-audit services;

° to review the financial information of the Group, which includes,
annual report and interim report;

° to review the Group’s financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems; and

° to review the external auditors’ management letters and
management’s response.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (F)

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice every year. Attendance of
each director at the meeting is set out below:

BEREZBE izﬁfﬁiﬁﬁ—éﬂi/ g% ATR

BEFHE

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HESE
RE TR E
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFTAE 212
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTES:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BRiRLE 2/2
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew ZRHLHIR 2/2
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRESRAE 212

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditor of the
Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. During
the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent
auditors, Ernst & Young, amounted to HK$1,100,000 in respect of
audit services. There have been no non-audit services rendered by the
Company’s independent auditors during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year.

To comply with the CG Code A.5.4, the Company has also adopted
the Model Code as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by certain employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
who are considered to be likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company or its securities.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information of the Company and the Group are delivered to its
shareholders through a number of channels, which includes annual
report, interim report, announcements and circulars. The latest
information of the Company and the Group together with the published
documents are also available on the Company’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERKRE (E)

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. No material internal control aspects
of any significant problems were noted. The Board was satisfied that
the internal control system of the Group has been functioned effectively
during the review year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 33 and 34.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The directors herein present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18
to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 35 to 133.

An interim dividend of HK6 cents per ordinary share was paid on
15 September 2011. The directors recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year
to shareholders on the register of members on 25 May 2012. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements
as an allocation of contributed surplus within the equity section of the
statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 135 to 136. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of the
Group’s investment properties are set out on page 134.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEgRE(E)

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED SHARES

Details of movements in the share capital, share options and awarded
restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in notes 30,
31 and 32 to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company purchased certain of its shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
and these shares were subsequently cancelled by the Company. The
share repurchase has enhanced the net asset value per share and the
earnings per share, which the directors believe is in the best interests of
the Company and the shareholders. Further details of these transactions
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 33(b) to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$122,069,000, of which HK$16,895,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the
Company'’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$38,493,000
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEgRE(E)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 46.9% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 15.8%. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 44.7% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 14.8%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Leung King San, Sunny

Yan King Shun

Independent non-executive directors:
Ha Shu Tong

Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Ng Cheung
Shing and Ha Shu Tong will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The independent non-executive directors have not been appointed for
a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation pursuant to the
Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from

Ha Shu Tong, Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEeRE(#)

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 12 to 14 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. In addition, the directors’
remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee annually.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
ESEREE)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests of the directors in the share
capital and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERROREBERD 2EZRKXR

RZE——F+=A=+—H ' ARQEIREHE
F MEEEDI([ FH R EE D)) 352168
EFE 2 ERMP AT siBiE FEiT AT
FHRITEFZHNEETRISITAERRF R
G2 FT REZERARR MEREEE (TR
BES NS IEGIEXVER) 2 IR K AR
P Ty (N

FAREBERZHER

Number of shares held, capacity and

nature of interest

FEROBE - SoRERME

Percentage

of the

Directly Through Company’s

heneficially controlled issued share

Note owned corporation Total capital

LER NN

HiEER ZiB BRITRAE

Name of director EEHR gz #E ZEHAF By B
Ng Cheung Shing REB (a) 4,102,000 110,000,000 114,102,000 46.38
Leung King San, Sunny REF 1,010,000 - 1,010,000 041
Yan King Shun ERE 608,000 - 608,000 0.25
5,720,000 110,000,000 115,720,000 47.04
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEEHRE(E)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

3

EERRORERRD 2ERZRKE

(%)
—XEBEERD 2R

Number of shares Percentage of

L E! the associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the beneficially controlled  issued share
Name of director corporation Company Class of shares owned corporation capital
LA E
SARRT HEER ZR ERIRE
EEpE LB S8 ZB% 40551 BE EEHAR Bk
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company’s Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
RE Technologies subsidiary deferred (note F3E(b)) TiEH
International Vi /N ol IS EREEIT
Limited PN
Rt RRBRAR
Notes: BfeE -

(a) The 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao Lien”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general
meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of Chao Lien.
Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in
all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b) The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the directors
had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
ESEREE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 (the “Adoption Date”). Pursuant to the
Award Scheme, shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are
granted to eligible employees (including directors) of the Group until the
10th anniversary from the Adoption Date. The Company shall also pay
cash to the appointed trustee company for its acquisition and holding
upon trust of the Awarded Shares for the benefit of these employees
and directors. The Awarded Shares will then be transferred to these
employees and directors upon vesting. The aggregate number of shares
to be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout its duration shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31

Report of the Directors (continued)

BREIR R E S (&)

TREFNEE=Z

——H+-A=+—HI%F
EAR R 8RN ERR O BE LA -

December 2011.
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AEBRBROEE
Weighted
At1 Awarded Vested Forfeited At31 average
Name of category January during during during December Vesting of fair value
of participant 2011 the year the year the year 2011 Award date Awarded Shares per share
R® R=B--F =13
BRENEY —2—-% £R £ £ +=A gL
il oVl -B-H [BE4) 258 BT =t-H BREREAN BREDRH AVE
HKS
B
Directors
3
Ng Cheung Shing 780,000 - (200,000) - 580,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 to 0.61
REB —ZT)N\F 30 June 2015
+tA-+=H ZZTNERAZTEE
“Z-1F~A=1A
Yan King Shun 780,000 - (200,000) - 580,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 to 0.61
TRE —TTN\E 30 June 2015
EATTZE  SERASAAZTAE
—E-1%~A=1H
Yan King Shun - 250,000 - - 250,000 1 April 2011 30 April 2012 to 1.59
E2E —I——F 30 April 2016
MA—H “Z--fmA=+HZE
“E-REMAZHA
1,560,000 250,000 (400,000) - 1,410,000
Other employees
HitfEg
In aggregate 2,370,000 - (600,000) (870,000) 900,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 to 0.61
ELh —ZT)\F 30 June 2015
+tA-+=AH “ETNERAZTRZE
—2-15 A=TH
In aggregate 1,110,000 - (222,000) (208,000) 680,000 1 March 2010 30 April 2011 to 1.35
@it —T-%F 30 April 2015
=RA-A —2——FMA=tHE
“Z-RENA=TA
In aggregate - 120,000 (24,000 - 96,000 3 January 2011 31 December 2011 to 1.50
et —E——F 31 December 2015
—-A=ZR ZE——HfZA=t-HZ
ZE-RFETZA=T-H
In aggregate - 320,000 - - 320,000 15 November 2011 30 September 2012 to 1.20
st 25 30 September 2016
+—RA+HA 1 e ol =
ZZ2-5NA=TH
5,040,000 690,000  (1,246,000)  (1,078,000) 3,406,000
MM EREEERAT —T——FFR 29
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’

Report of the Directors (continued)

INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2011, the following interests of more than 5% of the
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMALTARSG REBEK

102 iz

RZZE——F+_A=+—H U TFRARHA
B RS R EARIEE 77 K B 1R 5 336 15 E
FEZ #aBLMAEARREEHTRANE
PHED % DA b 2 #E 2

Long positions: HR
Number of Percentage of the Number
Name of shareholder ordinary  Company's issued of share
of the Company Notes Capacity and nature of interest shares held share capital options held
FRARRR i HERARCRT s
wE/ 2B izt BoRERME EERYA RABF D BREHE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@)  Directly beneficially owned 110,000,000 4471 -
B ER AT ERERRA
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@) Through a controlled corporation 110,000,000 4471 -
FRZEHIAT
Puttney Investments Limited (“PIL") (b)  Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.85 -
EREREA
Hutchison International Limited (“HIL”) ~ (b) ~ Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.85 -
FRZEHIAT
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL") ~ (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.85 -
MEERAERAR(ME]) FRZEIAT
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (b), (c) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.85 -
(“CKH") FRZEHIAT
RIZX(EB)ERAR(RE]D
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company (b), (c) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.85 -
Limited (“TUTL") ik NG
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation ), () Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.85 -
Limited (“TDT1") ik NG
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (b), (c) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.85 -
(“TDT2") FRZEHIAT
Li Ka-Shing (b), (c) Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.85 -
250 FRZESIAT
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 10.89 -
T ERERRA
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Report of the Directors (continued)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(a) The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of this
report.

(b) PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

(c) Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“TUHL"), of which each of Li Ka-Shing, Li Tzar
Kuoi, Victor, and Li Tzar Kai, Richard is interested in one-third of the entire issued
share capital, owns the entire issued share capital of TUT1. TUT1 as trustee of The
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust, together with certain companies of which TUT1 as trustee of
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than
one-third of the voting power at general meetings, hold more than one-third of the
issued share capital of CKH. Subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL.

In addition, TUHL also owns the entire issued share capital of TDT1 as trustee of
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1") and TDT2 as trustee of another
discretionary trust (“DT2”). Each of TDT1 and TDT2 holds units in The Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trust.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Li Ka-Shing, being the settlor and may being regarded as
a founder of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, TDT1, TDT2, TUT1 and CKH
were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above, had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 35 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEERE(E)

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B A E

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=z ik

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF COMPUTER AND TECHNOLOGIES
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 133, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

B BE RS ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22nd Floor

CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

22 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—F——

F+-A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MI5E F#ET T
REVENUE WA 5 391,209 338,851
Cost of sales and services SHE K RIS A (284,194) (225,741)
Gross profit E7 107,015 113,110
Other income and gains, net E AU A R M 55 5 24,262 8,152
Fair value gains/(losses), net: N EWES (B8 )35
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEBHZARZ
profit or loss VEEE (5,858) 615
Derivative financial instruments — PTERBIA-TEER
transactions not qualifying as hedges SR 2 R 5 72 (202)
Investment properties REYE 9,068 7,440
Selling and distribution costs $HE KD A (33,097) (31,797)
General and administrative expenses — R RITE RS (44,424) (41,572)
Finance costs 975 & R (545) (39)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBLAT R R 6 56,493 55,707
Income tax expense S 10 (4,949) (6,650)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO REERF
— OWNERS OF THE PARENT —BARHE AEMN 11 51,544 49,057
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
HK cents HK cents
AL P
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BRAREERRER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT EhHERER 13
Basic HIN 21.11 19.89
Diluted e 20.90 19.58

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed

in note 12 to the financial statements.
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REZEKRER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—T——F+-A=1+—HIFE

2011 2010
—g-——% -T-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEERF 51,544 49,057
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HhZEKRA
Available-for-sale investment: HHERE -
Changes in fair value NEEE) 150 200
Exchange differences on translation of BB GINETFSELE
foreign operations PEN Z%R 2,439 752
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR REEEMEEBA -
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HERTHIAE 2,589 952
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR N RRHEE ABGAREE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT ZEMALLEE 54,133 50,009
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEPBARRER

31 December 2011 —E——F+=-A=+—8

2011 2010
—B——F —B2F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BfaE FHET FHT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB NG 14 5,660 7,649
Investment properties mEYE 15 30,972 32,278
Goodwill [EES 16 25,813 25,813
Other intangible assets EtEmpEE 17 - =
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 19 2,000 1,850
Financial assets at fair value through A ELBRARZ
profit or loss W EE 24 3,187 847
Total non-current assets EMBEERE 67,632 68,437
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 12,431 18,482
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5B N R 21 67,615 74,441
Prepayments, deposits and TERNHIE ek
other receivables EAtbfEUGRIA 22 6,313 9,076
Due from contract customers A MR FFRIA 23 3,999 7,530
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFELIEHZARYZ
profit or loss G EE 24 20,100 10,648
Tax recoverable ARERIR 2,226 1,907
Derivative financial assets THEMEEE 27 91 -
Pledged bank deposits BEEHIRITER 25 31,774 37,560
Cash and cash equivalents BehERREEE 25 311,837 287,501
Total current assets MEVEERE 456,386 447,145
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables, other payables and B E ZERR - EfhES
accruals FRIE K JERTERIE 26 90,017 95,140
Derivative financial liabilities PTHEMBEE 27 221 202
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ESRITIEE 28 22,526 26,520
Due to contract customers ERNEXEPIE 23 3,019 2,658
Deferred revenue IRIEUA 5,937 6,186
Tax payable FESNTHIR 15,223 11,739
Total current liabilities mEEEEE 136,943 142,445
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEERE 319,443 304,700
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BREERRBEME 387,075 373,137
MM EGERERAT —T——F5R8 37



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

REMBMRRERR(E)
31 December 2011 —FE——F+=-A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MI5E FHET T
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HWEERRBEE 387,075 373,137
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE 29 2,975 3,429
Net assets EEFE 384,100 369,708
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BARRE AEEER
Issued capital BEITIRA 30 24,604 257273
Reserves i 33(a) 342,601 329,627
Proposed final dividend ¥R R EARG 2 12 16,895 14,808
Total equity s 384,100 369,708
Ng Cheung Shing & & B Leung King San, Sunny 25 37
Director % Director 2%
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mEREREBE R

Year ended 31 December 2011 &HZE —Z——

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equit

F+=A=t+—HILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREARE
Shares held
under the Available-
restricted ~~~ Share- for-sale
Share share based Asset  investment Exchange Proposed
Issued ~ premium  Contributed award  payment  Goodwill revaluation revaluation  Reseme fluctuation Retained final Total
capital account  surplus  scheme  reserve  reseve  reseve  reseve funds — reserve profits  dividend equity
RERRH
Rf%R qitge
287 Rk HHEE  REAR BEEh  REER EiRE K
ke BER HAE&  Zhf fE  HERE e fE  BREE BE REEN  FERR ER4E
Notes  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS0O0  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HK$000
Wi Tar TEr  TEr  TEr At TRt TRt TR TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr A
(note 33(a)) (note 33(a)) (note 33(a))
(3330 (53300 (H5E33()
At 1 January 2010 RZ%-35-5-A 5213 8493 17648 (3946) 2208 (7.227) PAS) 90 73 L4 1047 1486 31012
Profitfor the year REFER = = = = = = = - - - 49057 - 1905
Other comprehensive income forthe year: REREBEERA :
Changes in fair value of an available-for-sale MREERELTEES
nvestment, net of tax bl - - - - - - - 200 - - - - 200
Exchange diferences on translaton of BEBNEBREE,
foreign operations EfZE - - - - - - - - - 752 - - 75
Total comprehensive income fo the year KERREHALE = - - - - - - 0 - 752 49057 - R0
Purchase of shares held under the BEARRGRE:E
restricted share award scheme BT 2 = = - B = = = = = - - - B8
Vesting of shares held under the BRARARE AT
restricted share award scheme KB 2 - - - 59 (589) - - - - - - - -
Share award amangements fhip Rz R - - - -1 - - - - = = -1
Disposal of an investment property HERanE - - - - - - (233) - - - 31 - 8
Final and special 2000 dividends declared ER-EENERERENRE - - 114 - - - - - - - - (1486 (14772)
Interim 2010 dividend “3-3EhERE 12 = - (14808 = - - - - - - - - (14808
Proposed final 2010 dividend BE-T-TERERE 12 - - (14808 - - - - - - - - 14808 -
31 Decemter 2010 Ro2-B612A=H-A B3 B UGRE 6B O 02 < 60 TR L LGS 1488 B
Mg EnEEERAT —T——44R8 39



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

REERSBR(E)

Year ended 31 December 2011 HiE ==

——&+=A=t—ALEFR

Attributable to owners of the parent

BOAER AR
Shares held
under the Availahle-
restricted Share- for-sale
Share share hased Asset  investment Exchange Proposed
Issued ~ premium  Contributed award  payment  Goodwill revaluation revaluation  Reserve  fluctuation  Retained final Total
captll  account  suplus  scheme  resee  resewe  reserve  reseme funds ~ reserve profits  dividend equity
RERRS
LviEd ] e
B8 v HHEE  RBAR BEEf REEH EfED i
s BER HAR& BB fE HERE i RE @RES BE REEN  FERE EREE
Nofes  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
i Thn  TAn  TEr  TEr  FEr  TEr  TEr TR TR TR TR TEr TEn
(note 33(a)) (note 33(a)) (note 33(a))
(5330 (5330 (53300
At 1 January 2011 RZE-——%-A-A B3 A 146986+ (6405 2876 (.22 - 690* 73 1866° 151615 14808 369,708
Proftfo the year TEEE - - - - - - - - - - 5154 - 5154
Qther comprehensive income forthe year: KEEEBZANA :
Changes infair value of an available-forsale ~ THEEREATERS
investment, net oftax Bt - - - - - - - 150 - - - - 150
Eichange diferences on translation of orelgn~ RE BN EBEEE I BY 28
operations - - - - - - - - - 2439 - - 2439
Total comprehensive income for the year KEE2ARAEE - - - - - - - 150 -4 515 - M
Repurchase of shares ) 0 (669) - (10870) - - - - - - - - - (15%9)
Vesting of shares held under the ERHRAREE AT
restricted share award scheme Kih%E R - - - 129 (1,229 - - - - - - - -
Share award arangements Ripsgzs: R - - - - 1,057 - - - - - - - 1,057
Final 2010 dividend declared SR-5-3578RE - - 193 - - - - - - - - (14808)  (14615)
Intgrim 2011 cvidend E-FhiRe 12 - - (1464) - - - - - - - - - (14684)
Proposed final 2011 dividend HE-F—FRERE 12 - - (16,8%) - - - - - - - - 1689 -
At 31 December 2011 R=EF—§+-A=1-A 1604 38493 104710+ G176 2704 (.220¢ - 840* 733 4305° 203159 16895 384100

*

40

These reserve accounts comprise the

consolidated reserves of HK$342,601,000 *

(2010: HK$329,627,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2011 &2 T ——F+_A=+—HILFE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BfaE FExT FABT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH2RERE
Profit before tax: BRFLADEF 56,493 55,707
Adjustments for: KT
Financial costs B & 7 545 39
Bank interest income IRITH BHA 5 (6,474) (3,077)
Dividend income from listed investments EmEEZRBEWA 5 (554) (435)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment BB E 2 W 5 (6,865) (1,465)
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREWHE 2 W 5 (73) =
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair e A FELBR AR
value through profit or loss 2 EE 7 W 5 (255) (277)
Fair value loss/(gains), net: AFEEE () F58
Financial assets at fair value through A AL B AR
profit or loss B EE 6 5,858 (615)
Investment properties B 6 (9,068) (7,440)
Derivative financial instruments — PTEBEIA—T4
transactions not qualifying as hedges BRI 2R 5 (72) 202
Depreciation e 6 1,682 2,192
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 R FORIE 6 188 296
Impairment of prepayments, FERNHIE - E2 Rk
deposits and other receivables H e WGRIBERUE 6 - 600
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables Bl E 58 Z0RE 6 (1,580) (2,508)
Reversal of impairment of amounts due BRI A NE P IR
from contract customers BE 6 (758) (565)
Reversal of trade receivables written off (o] fE U 55 BR S £ 6 (227) (52)
Reversal of impairment of amounts due BRI A NE P IR
from contract customers write off VERIER 6] 6 (34) -
Write-off of items of property, plant and ME - BB RREEE
equipment 6! 6 105 12
Equity-settled share-based payment IR E AR DS R 2
expense 32 1,057 1,237
39,968 43,851
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEmL /(32 0m) 6,051 (13,193)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEUR & 5 BR T % FE U 2 4
bills receivables B () 8,416 (10,491)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from A KB P A
contract customers B,/ (#hn) 4,323 (744)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits  FEATZRIA « 56 R E bR
and other receivables IR AL, (3En) 2,763 (1,689)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, ENE SRR - EfbERZIE
other payables and accruals K et CR ) (5,135) 9,641
Increase in amounts due to FEfE& K% P 3OS N
contract customers 361 1,075
Decrease in deferred revenue IR AR (249) (3,513)
Cash generated from operations KEEBFBES 56,498 24,937
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEEEBNEN (2,509) (4,391)
Overseas taxes paid EHUEINGIIE (176) (549)
Net cash flows from operating activities KB EEAER R EF5 53,813 19,997
NBEGEEERART —T— 44K 41



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

RERERERHA)

Year ended 31 December 2011 £

FH_A=t—HIFE

2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FAT
Net cash flows from operating activities CEEBFEIRERE T 53,813 19,997
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHZHERE
Bank interest received BYERTTH S 6,474 3,077
Dividends received from listed investments B B R 474 330
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BEKXEER
plant and equipment 14 (871) (859)
Purchases of listed investments BE EHRE (19,406) (23,446)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, H&EYZE « MEN
plant and equipment RABIE B TS RIE 8,005 4,045
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HEREYESRIE
property 10,447 -
Held-to-maturity securities settled BAEEE R EE A - 498
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~ H &z A FELB AR
fair value through profit or loss 2T EERSEIA 2,091 26,734
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits £ #3R$RITIE 0L (3E40) 5,786 (25,731)
Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged bank U EERF R B BRI B BB
deposits with original maturity of more than =& A 2 EE
three months when acquired SRITEFORAD, /(3 0) (317) 3,346
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing REEBRE(FrA)RE
activities mE R 12,683 (12,006)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETHRERE
Repurchase of shares EAElibg) 30 (11,539) =
Purchase of shares under the restricted BE ARSI,
share award scheme EEh=TEITE IR D 32 - (3,048)
New bank loans FIEIRITE R 28 22,526 26,520
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (26,520) =
Dividends paid BRRE (29,259) (29,580)
Interest paid BRFE (533) (15)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEEREMAR RS T (45,325) (6,123)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERERREEEZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS B nFEE 21,171 1,868
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#lZHEE& MERBEEEE 281,590 278,796
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net — [ERi#E) 7 528 %%E 2,848 926
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF YEAR £ E>HERZFRLEE 305,609 281,590
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH RERZERLEE
EQUIVALENTS EEHROM
Cash and bank balances W NIRTER 25 70,774 133,577
Non-pledged time deposits with original W B RS R EIHA B
maturity of less than three months when THBE=EAZ
acquired IR BITE 30 234,835 148,013
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the SARERERZ
statement of cash flows HeRERRLSEE 25 305,609 281,590
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Statement of Financial Position
B R AR R R 2R

31 December 2011 —E——F+=-A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M5t THET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 18 178,588 220,954
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TERRUR 22 256 259
Cash and cash equivalents HekFERREEE 25 4,116 1,433
Total current assets MEVEERE 4,372 1,692
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accruals FEETFUE 26 266 209
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEEFE 4,106 1,483
Net assets BEEE 182,694 222,437
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITIAR 30 24,604 25,273
Reserves HiE 33(b) 141,195 182,356
Proposed final dividend B R HIRZ B 12 16,895 14,808
Total equity EmBE 182,694 222,437
Ng Cheung Shing & KB Leung King San, Sunny 2537
Director &% Director €%
Mg EsEEARAR —T——FFR 43



Notes to Financial Statements

B TSR & B RE

Year ended 31 December 2011 HE - ——F+_-_HA=+—RHIFE

2.1

44

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 30th Floor, Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663
King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

o sale of computer networks and system platforms, the
provision of system and network integration, information
technology (“IT”) solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services;

o provision of enterprise application software and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services; and

° property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
derivative financial instruments, available-for-sale investment and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.1 RBEEAE(E)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to the
non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 3 o B o (4D
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—E——F+_-_A=+—RIFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

46

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Related Party Disclosures

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation - Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments
of a Minimum Funding Requirement

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in
May 2010

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
HKAS 24 (Revised) and amendment to HKAS 1 included in
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions
of related parties. The new definitions emphasise a
symmetrical view of related party relationships and clarify
the circumstances in which persons and key management
personnel affect related party relationships of an entity.
The revised standard also introduces an exemption
from the general related party disclosure requirements
for transactions with a government and entities that are
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the
same government as the reporting entity. The accounting
policy for related parties has been revised to reflect the
changes in the definitions of related parties under the revised
standard. The adoption of the revised standard did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group. Details of the related party transactions, including the
related comparative information, are included in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption
of some of the amendments may result in changes in
accounting policies, none of these amendments has had
a significant financial impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group. Details of the key amendment
most applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The
amendment clarifies that an analysis of each component of
other comprehensive income can be presented either in the
statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial
statements. The Group elects to present the analysis of each
component of other comprehensive income in the statement
of changes in equity.
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2.3

48

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

2.3 EEMEERER2E BV BR

HEA

AEEWENLERHREERBIATE
MR B R R AR Z ] R B RT BB B

statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
— Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets !

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities *

Financial Instruments ©

Consolidated Financial Statements 4

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities *

Fair Value Measurement*

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income 3

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes -
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets 2

Employee Benefits 4

Separate Financial Statements 4

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures *

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities ®

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine *

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified
as equity, it will not be remeasured. Subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. In instances where the contingent
consideration does not fall within the scope of HKAS 39, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

50

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA’s Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30”)
in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against
consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of
HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated
reserves and is not recognised in the income statement when all or
part of the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or
when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

52

(CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over the
Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (iii) is
a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 2% to 4%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 20%
Computer equipment 20% to 331/5%
and software
Furniture, fixtures and 18% to 25%
other equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

54

(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied
by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in use,
and any difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
expected commercial lives of the underlying products/services
not exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
products/services are available for commercial use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

56

(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, an available-for-sale investment, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by
HKAS 39.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the income statement. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them
in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive
markets and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable
future significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets. The reclassification from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss to loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity investments depends
on the nature of the assets. This evaluation does not affect any
financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss using
the fair value option at designation as these instruments cannot be
reclassified after initial recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

58

(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted club membership debentures. Debts securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or
losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve to the income statement in other expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the income statement in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

60

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
“loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses
on debt instruments are reversed through the income statement,
if the increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

62

(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in
the case of loans and borrowings, directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
financial liabilities included in accruals, derivative financial
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain
or loss recognised in the income statement does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair

value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only of the criteria of HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

64

(CONTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and
other valuation models.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge its foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the income statement.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares)
are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Shares held under the restricted share award scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for
a restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under the restricted share award scheme” and deducted
from equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in advance
from the rendering of the corresponding services. Revenue
is recognised and deferred revenue is released to the income
statement when the corresponding services have been rendered.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—-ZT——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

66

(CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MR E M ()
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—-ZT——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

68

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold;

from the rendering of integration and solutions services
and application services (other than the sale of goods or
the provision of maintenance services), on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Contracts for services” below, or when the
relevant services have been performed;

from the provision of maintenance services, on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the respective contract, or
when the relevant services have been performed;

from the sale of listed investments, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount. Contract costs comprise direct equipment
and material costs, labour and other costs of personnel directly
engaged in providing the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services (other than those that
are recognised on a time proportion basis over the period of the
contract or when the relevant services have been performed, as
appropriate) is recognised based on the percentage of completion
of the transaction, provided that the revenue, the costs incurred
and the estimated costs to completion can be measured reliably.
The percentage of completion is established by reference to the
costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be incurred
under the transaction, or the value of services performed to date
as a percentage of the value of total services to be performed
under the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract cannot be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that
the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated as
an amount due from contract customers. Where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due to
contract customers.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and
a restricted share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Employees of the Group
(including directors of the entities comprising the Group) receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

70

(CONTINUED)

Share-bhased payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and shares held under
the restricted share award scheme is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only
to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had
not vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1
January 2005.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at
the end of each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following year.
An accrual is made at the end of each reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central retirement
benefit scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

72

(CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors, excluding those relating
to the Company’s own shares held under the Company’s restricted
share award scheme, are classified as a separate allocation of
retained profits and/or other distributable reserves within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are taken to the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or
loss arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
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Year ended 31 December 2011 #{EZ=—F——F+=-A=+—HIFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

4 2

T
SER

24

%
%1,
i

TEETHRME(E)

SN (48)
ETHEINIBARZEE®E BT
SNEH RBEHREER  ZFER

REERAERBENHGER ZEX
BERARRZ2WEH - MARKES
RARFEZ NEFAERBE R
T BMEEAZEXRZENEMEEIK
AR YRERKBREERT - HE
BINETEE - AR ESIEHZH
b2 EUATA B R R AR o

HEEHERERMS  BINGERF
ZHEenENETERERNEE B ZE
EMERETT - FRNBINBRARBE
EHE 2R EIME THRE NI THE X
BMEEBTT -

TEETHE R

EEEERUAKEN B RERAEH
H - AR R R - MARHIE - ﬁﬁ
EBREREHEA X - BEMAED

&&%Eﬁ&%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$
BERENTE - R > ZFBRRX LM
AT REE MBI AR E R KR EX
B EENMAERAEEREARE

H

ERAARKEZ @ BERE - RIATHER
a2 HIESN - EEREIEL TS
BECHERSBREABATE ZHIE -

AEEHEFIE— A EFERLEN
AEBEEREREMFASFTILEAY
FHH - ERHBRRHER RGN Z
FHE - AEBERREREZED %&:—ﬁﬁ
ELEMER AR ZEARRK

e

]

BERAT —E——EE£R 73



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MR E M ()
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—-ZT——F+_-_A=+—HILFE

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the Group’s
provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is subject to
the agreement by the relevant tax authority. The Group recognises
liabilities for such transactions based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact the income tax in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2011 was HK$25,813,000 (2010: HK$25,813,000).
Further details are given in note 16 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair value. The fair value at
the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable
or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
the corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss are recognised
in the income statement.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan/receivable is impaired.
To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment,
the Group considers factors including, inter alia, the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtors and
default or significant delay in payments.

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss arising
from the inability of its debtors to make the required payments.
The Group makes its estimates based on the ageing of its
receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness, and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of its debtors was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are contained in note 29 to the financial
statements.

Impairment of an available-for-sale investment

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements in their fair values in equity. When the fair
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline
in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the income statement. At 31 December 2011,
no impairment losses have been recognised for an available-for-
sale investment (2010: Nil). The carrying amount of the available-
for-sale investment was HK$2,000,000 (2010: HK$1,850,000).
Further details are included in note 19 to the financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in note
2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates
to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovation and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. They could change significantly as a result of changes in
market conditions. The Group will reassess the estimations at the
end of each reporting period.

Contracts for services

The Group recognises certain contract revenue by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, when the outcome of a contract can be estimated
reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date
bear to the estimated total contract costs to be incurred under the
transaction, or value of services performed to date as a percentage
of the value of total services to be performed under the transaction.
Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total contract
costs and/or the stage of completion, and the recoverable variation
works that will affect the stage of completion. The estimates are
made based on past experience and knowledge of management.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the integration and solutions services segment that engages
in the sales of computer networks and system platforms, and
the provision of system and network integration, IT solutions
development and implementation, and related maintenance
services;

(b) the application services segment that engages in the
provision of enterprise software applications and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services; and

(c) the investments segment primarily that engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and treasury investment in
listed securities for dividend income and interest income.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated
other income and gains, net, corporate and other unallocated
depreciation, corporate and other unallocated expenses, and
finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude derivative financial assets, deferred tax
assets, tax recoverable, pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, and other unallocated head office and corporate assets
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial liabilities, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during
the current and prior years.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4., REFTER(E)
(a) Operating segments (a) pan:i}
Group TEH
Integration and
Solutions Services Application Services Investments Total
ERRBRARRE ERRE ke ag
2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010 201 2010
“E--F -F-TF —g--f -%-%F -E--f -T-%TF “B--fF -%-%f
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000
Térn TEnr  TExr  THr  TEn  TEn TER TEn
Segment revenue: AHUA
Sales to external customers HETIAER 309978 257302 79489  797% 1,742 1753 391209 333851
Other income and gains, net H ARG EE 4,909 1,09 194 864 9,172 2933 14,2754 4,887
Total &t 314,887 25839 79,683 80,060 10914 4680 405484 343738
Segment results PREE 2349 039 2185 2%7% 14739 13758 64373 69813
Reconciliation: -
Unallocated interest income RARFSIMA 64740 30770
Unallocated other income and gains, ~ &AREMRAR
net leaies 3913 1887
Corporate and other unallocated CERERAAENE
depreciation (250) (312)
Corporate and other unallocated PERERAIERS
EXDENSes (17,0120 (17,020)
Finance costs SHRAA (545) (39)
Profit before tax Ny 56493 55,707
Segment assets PHEE 82,664 102257 35,049 34073 60,054 52,145 171,767 188475
Reconcilation: i
Corporate and other unallocated assets A% R EMFATEE 346251 327107
Total assets EEME 524018 515582
Segment liabilities = 63,530 71,840 32,989 29,721 580 533 97,099 102,100
Reconciliation: HE
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMASEAR
liabilities 42,819 43,774
Total liabilies BEEE 130918 145874

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$391,209,000
(2010: HK$338,851,000) in the consolidated income statement.

A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net, of
HK$24,262,000 (2010: HK$8,152,000) in the consolidated income

statement.

Mgt R GEEER AT

ERBRAKRSERZEEKA
391,209,000 T (=& — T 4 -
338,851,000/ 7T) °

BREERANERANZ EMRARIK

HFE824,262, 0008 TL( T — T4 ¢
8,152,000/ 7T) °
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4., REHSTER(E)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) REHI(E)
Group rEH
Integration and
Solutions Services Application Services Investments Total
SHERAFREH EREH kg 45
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“5--f -%2-%F “%--F “T-%F “%--f -2-%F “%--F -T-%f
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$OO0  HK$000  HKSO000  HK§'000  HK$000
Tén  TEr  TEn  TEr  THn  TEr  TEn  TEn
Other segment information: ErAHER
Net fair value gains on investment~ RANEATEUGEE
properties - - - - 9,068 7440 9,068 7440
Net fair value gains/(losses) on financial RATELFIER AL
assets at fair value through profi BREEATEYE
orloss /(BR)EFE - - - - (588) 65  (5858) 615
Depreciation nE 802 1222 517 471 13 181 1432 1,880
Corporate and other nallocated tERERAIENE
depreciation 250 312
1,682 2,192
Other material non-cash AMEAREER
incomel(expense) items, net* WA/ (i) 5 1,920 2,960 20 (184) - (600) 2,150 2176
Capital expenditure** BB 344 254 465 465 - - 809 719
Corporate and other nallocated EERAMRAR
capital expenditure BREY 62 140

*

Including impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income

statement attributable to the application services segment and
investments segment of HK$188,000 (2010: HK$296,000) and Nil
(2010: HK$600,000), respectively, and impairment losses reversed
in the consolidated income statement attributable to the integration
and solutions services segment and the application services segment
of HK$1,920,000 (2010: HK$2,960,000) and HK$418,000 (2010:
HK$112,000), respectively.

*k

equipment.
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(b)

(c)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. REIHER(E)
Geographical information (h) HEER
Group rEH
(i) Revenue from external customers (i)  KEIIRELZIA
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BE HEIRH: ok
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“E—-F %% ZE--Ff 2T T CT-%%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B THr FhR T Fhr T
Segment revenue: DEBA :
Sales to external customers HETFINREE 139,821 141,436 251,388 197 415 391,209 338,351
The revenue information is based on the location of WA B R T AR P Pt AR LE o
the customers.
(i) Non-current assets (i)  FEmEEE
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Hong Kong & 53,961 56,885
Mainland China H B K e 8,484 8,855
62,445 65,740
The non-current asset information is based on the EMEBEEERTIIEEETH
location of assets and excludes financial instruments. 2% BRI REGTRIBIEA -
Information about major customers (c) EEEFZEH
Revenue from external customers individually amounting to KEINREF.Z WA MBS A 5
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue: EAENA10% LA L -
For the year ended 31 December 2011, revenues from three HE-_Z——F+=-HA=+—H
major customers of HK$61,687,000, HK$58,301,000 and IEFE RE=ZRFTEEFEB
HK$39,862,000, individually amounting to 10% or more of 2 WA % 5l A61,687,000/8 7T
the Group’s total revenue, were derived from the integration 58,301,000 /& 7T K& 39,862,000
and solutions services segment. BT hANEE R A10% 3K IA
F BHESBIIRESEKNRER
FEDED °
For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenues from two HE-_Z—ZTF+-_A=+—H
major customers of HK$41,857,000 and HK$41,795,000, JJ:iE KEMEZEERFEEH
individually amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s total Z WA DRI A41,857,0007% T &
revenue, were derived from the integration and solutions 41,795,000/ 7T + fh A & B 21K
services segment. AL0% AL - BSREIRE
SRR RS ES ©
R EREEERAT —T——44%8 81
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of trade
discounts, returns and business tax, where applicable; fees earned
from the provision of system and network integration, IT solutions,
enterprise software applications, business process outsourcing,
e-business and related services; fees earned from the provision of
maintenance services; gross rental income earned from investment
properties; and interest income earned from treasury investments
during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows:

WA~ HAWA K U

WA (TRENA SR 2 &R 8 I FAHE
EmZBRERBNRESTN  RE
REEB(ER)  REXREPRE
PARTS - BRRHXBRTT R - BERMF
&R - XBmiEIN - ETE SRR
REHRMER - BRURBERERRZ
ER REMERBR A WAL
AN BB R BRI M BHA -

WA~ B AR F BT

2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue L ON
Sale of computer networks and system HEBMNE L ESRTS -
platforms, and the provision of system and R R G MBS SR RS -
network integration, IT solutions development BRI BR T RER K
and implementation, and related maintenance B A M AR RER
services 309,978 257,302
Provision of enterprise software applications TR B FE A K AR RS
and related operation outsourcing, business BB - FRMARINA -
process outsourcing and e-business, and BT HE 5 IR A KGR
related maintenance services IREIRTE 79,489 79,796
Gross rental income from investment properties &Y 2 AL U ALEZE &
and interest income from treasury investments ERBIRE 2 FBWA 1,742 1,753
391,209 338,851
Other income and gains, net HW AR W= F5E
Bank interest income HRITHEUA 6,474 3,077
Other interest income HAbFIE WA - 30
Dividend income from listed investments EmEEZRBWA 554 435
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value ~ HEIRAF(ELLIBEAE
through profit or loss 2B E 2 W 255 277
Gain on disposal of items of property, plantand — HEWE - BE MK
equipment IHE 2 W 6,865 1,465
Gain on disposal of an investment property HEREYEZ WS 73 _
Foreign exchange differences, net PE N ZRFRE 9,742 1,249
Others HAth 299 1,619
24,262 8,152
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

6.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

|/

BRBL A% A

ALBE 2 BHATDGEFENGR GIA)T

HI|=IE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FERT FAET
Cost of inventories sold BHEFEMA 246,859 188,106
Cost of services provided SR AR A A 36,954 37,045
Depreciation* e 14 1,682 2,192
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment B EEES (6,865) (1,465)
Gain on disposal of an investment property &R E YIS (73) -
Minimum lease payments under operating ~ 1RISEAAER +H K&
leases in respect of land and buildings BFEMz&ERS A 4,745 4,607
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN 1,100 1,068
Employee benefit expense (excluding BEERIHAL(TERES
directors’ remuneration — note 8)*: < —HizE8)*
Wages, salaries and allowances IE - Hs Rk 83,732 80,304
Equity-settled share-based payment ARHE B DA N F R 2
expense 745 969
Retirement benefit scheme RIKTBFETEIHE R
contributions (defined contribution (Fraft et
schemes) 5,507 4,784
Less: Forfeited contributions* R (58) (27)
Net retirement benefit scheme RIREFEIMFFE
contributions 5,449 4,757
89,926 86,030
Impairment of trade receivables W B ZERTRE 21 188 296
Impairment of prepayments, deposits and ~ TBfI30E « e R
other receivables H W IBRE 22 - 600
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables B fEUE 5 EEFRE 21 (1,580) (2,508)
Reversal of trade receivables written off B E 5 R (227) (52)
Reversal of impairment of amounts due B ORISR PRUA
from contract customers VERES 23 (758) (565)
Reversal of impairment of amounts due BoERANER
from contract customers written off BB E M (34) =
Direct operating expenses (including repairs ~ °] BEEVFH S 2 &AM
and maintenance) arising on rental- BEREERY
earning investment properties (BREEBERRE) 144 234
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NEEER,/ () FE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELEEARZ
profit or loss BB EE 5,858 (615)
Investment properties REME 15 (9,068) (7,440)
Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative PTHEBBRIEZ ATE
financial instruments B8/ (a)
— transactions not qualifying as hedges —NEERIEEHZR S 130 202
— settlement of derivative financial —REETETBTA
instruments (202) =
Write-off of items of property, plant and Y - R MR ETE B s
equipment 14 105 12
Rental income on investment properties less & &MER S AR EIZEL L
direct operating expenses of HK$144,000 52 144,000/87C
(2010: HK$234,000) (ZZT—Z4F : 234,000 T) (1,372) (1,217)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) e

MR E M aE ()
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—-T——F+-A=+—HILFE

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 6. PBREIADERI(E)

@ Depreciation for the year of HK$381,000 (2010: HK$590,000) is included in * AERAFEIBLO0BT(ZF—FTF

“Cost of sales and services” on the face of the consolidated income statement. 590,000/8 7T ) A fR A U R 2 [ $HE R AR
TERAIA o

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$36,954,000 (2010: HK$37,045,000) classified # BEIBEREMIBHRBEKA] 2 8HE

under “Cost of services provided” above. 36,954,000 7L (ZF—Z 4 : 37,045,000
EIT)

L The amounts of forfeited contributions available to reduce the Group's # R_B——FR_F—FF+-A=+—
contributions to the retirement benefit schemes in future years were not B - AR EHR A S ER AR B R R AR
material as at 31 December 2011 and 2010. BIER R B R B EEL TERX ©

7. FINANCE COSTS 1. BBEH
2011 2010
—EB——F —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT BT

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within BERRAFRNBHERZ

five years RITEFZFE 545 39

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEMS

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to Section FANESWSRBERB R HEFIF 161

161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules BREBHERZIFBRARFES LT

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong RAN(T EMRBDETENT -

Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), is as follows:

Group

AEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Fees: we

Executive directors HITES - -
Independent non-executive directors BAUEMITES 450 450
450 450

Other emoluments: Hip 4 -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NREWFRZE 5,124 4,860

Bonuses* TE4T* 836 1,572

Equity-settled share-based payment expense# IS 45 & ARR A < 3k B S 312 268
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFET B

(defined contribution scheme) (EREHKETE)) 36 36

6,308 6,736

6,758 7,186
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MRS M (&)
Year ended 31 December 2011 & E —ZE——F+_A=+—RHIFEE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are
determined by the board of directors on a discretionary basis.

During the year and in prior years, certain directors were awarded restricted
shares of the Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of
the Company, further details of which are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such restricted shares, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

8.

EEME (&)

(a)

ETAAREEZARERHEESMIBEEE
ZAEALEAR o

NAFERBEFE @ RIBEARRZEMRE
Bfn E2EET 8 - RETRBHREZHRT
ETEFERRERANEEARMARGER
ARFEREII - BEE—FHEHRY
BIREMFES2 - ZEBRFRBHAFETY
REH R - YERBBIAERER
R Mt ARNFERBREZSHEITDE
EREXEEMEHER -

BYKHTES
FR XN TEULATESTZ
BRI -

2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET

Independent non-executive directors: B IEITES ¢
Ha Shu Tong B 150 150
Lee Kwok On, Matthew EEike 150 150
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TEE 150 150
450 450
Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments B EXHEEEIN  REAFEERB

payable to the independent non-executive directors during
the current and prior years.

Mgt R GEEER AT

EFEYERMEN THILIEHN
TESEZMZ -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MR E M aE ()
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—-T——F+-A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

8. EZM< (&)

(b)  Executive directors (h) HITES
The fees and other emoluments paid to executive directors ER YN TFHROTESZ2HEEL
during the year were as follows: Htbf&mT
Salaries, Equity-settled  Retirement
allowances share-based henefit
and benefits payment scheme Total
in kind Bonuses expense contributions remuneration
Er A REFE
EER DY 47) BARER
BYRIE AL A% HE[EEN Gk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FTHET THET FTERT FHET
2011 —E——f
Executive directors: HITESE
Ng Cheung Shing RER
(“Mr. Ng") (=5 2,892 836 93 12 3,833
Leung King San, Sunny 22 300 - - 12 312
Yan King Shun EE2fE 1,932 - 219 12 2,163
5,124 836 312 36 6,308
2010 —T-TF
Executive directors: HITES :
Ng Cheung Shing RER
(“Mr. Ng") (TREED 2,874 762 134 12 3,782
Leung King San, Sunny B2 300 = = 12 312
Yan King Shun == 1,686 810 134 12 2,642
4,860 1,672 268 36 6,736

The directors’ emoluments paid to Mr. Ng included a
housing allowance of HK$1,872,000 (2010: HK$1,854,000)
which is remunerated by way of rental reimbursement. The
rentals of the related property were paid directly by Mr. Ng
to the landlord, which is a company jointly controlled by Mr.
Ng and one of his family members.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the current and
prior years.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2010: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three
(2010: three) non-director, highest paid employees for the year are
as follows:

hEBREHNES

FA hERSFMHEEREMA(Z
T-FTF WMB)EF REZHEH
BEN EXHES - Hp =R (=T —F
F:ZR)REFHGFESEE 2HE
AEWENT

Group

REE
2011 2010
—E——F —B-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FHIT
Salaries and allowances e oRah 3,025 3,315
Equity-settled share-based payment expense A% FE 45 B LA IR 0 5t B 2 103 216
Bonuses and commissions TEA R AE 590 566

Retirement benefit scheme contributions ROKEFET S

(defined contribution schemes) (EREHFETED 62 76
3,780 4,173

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FNTUATAR 2 e EEEE
B2ZAEWOT ¢

Number of employees

EEAR

2011 2010

—g——5 2%

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/8 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T % 2,500,000/ 7T - 1
3 8

During the year and in prior years, restricted shares of the
Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, were awarded to
one non-director, highest paid employee in respect of his services
to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such restricted shares,
which has been recognised in the income statement over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

FAMRBEFE @ REARBZAER
A R EE B - RETERBRAEZR
RT —2&eFHFEFRECHER
AEB PR HARTE X AR R A R
o E— T FBEERRM B IREM 32
ZERRGIRD 2 A FETIREL A S
BF > YERRBHANERSRER
Mt AR FERBREZCBNCBRE
REXE=HIFEFREREMSTENR -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MR E M aE ()
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—-T——F+-A=+—HILFE

10. INCOME TAX 10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

125t

FENERIBEAFEARBBEL
ZIhAT RS MR K 16.5%(—F—
T4F : 16.5%)fFhBHE - HfbinRER
B M 2 HIBTR B A R B & XA
KRR, REER 2 BRITHEE -

2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Group: KEHE
Current — Hong Kong BER— &8
Charge for the year FRHESH 4,185 3,088
Overprovision in prior years FFEZIREE - (46)
Current — Elsewhere BNE — H fibih [
Charge for the year FRFELZH 1,568 1,755
Underprovision/(overprovision) FFEERETR
in prior years (1R EHE) (350) 20
Deferred (note 29) IRIE (FI7E29) (454) 1,789
Total tax charge for the year FRRIAS H 4258 4,949 6,650

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory profits tax rate for Hong Kong in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are operating/domiciled to the
tax charge at the effective tax rate is as follows:

ERRBAR T RERE D B A B
8/ M ER 2 EENEH R EAR
BRBANGEN 2 BHIAH - BRERR
RABEZRIBSHERAT

88

Group rEEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBT
Profit before tax BB AT A 56,493 55,707
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory BEBEERE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) —E—TF 1 165%)
=HE I 9,321 9,192
Higher tax rates for overseas subsidiaries BN B A AR e B R 483 645
Adjustments in respect of current tax of B FEBNEATE 1A
previous periods YEH % (350) (26)
Income not subject to tax HAEZRTUA (3,474) (866)
Expenses not deductible for tax DA A 826 678
Tax losses utilised from previous periods R BAHR 2 HIEEE (2,112) (2,645)
Others H 255 (328)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective AEEZRERREAE
tax rate FIA H 4,949 6,650
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

10.

11.

12.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Under the income tax laws of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), enterprises are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”)
generally at a rate of 25% (2010: 25%). However, certain of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are operating in specific development
zones of the PRC and the relevant tax authorities have granted
those subsidiaries a preferential CIT rate of 24% (2010: 22%).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for the
year ended 31 December 2011 includes a loss of HK$2,000 (2010:
HK$12,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company (note 33(b)).

DIVIDENDS

10. FIEB(E)

REBEREARKXME(THE])FAEHR
o ER-RARBU(ZE-TF
25%) Z R R EEH([REPT
B - Al AKEETHEKE
REETEFERERALERT -
BERANBRECHEZSHBARIKRE
BERABRRE2A%(ZE—TF :
22% )

1. BRARERARGLRR

BHE_T——F+-_A=+—HLHF
B BRABEABLGEEFBE
E51E2,000# T (—ZF —Z 4 : 12,000
BIL)  ERARA R BRETE (M

33(b)) °
12. RE
2011 2010
—E——fF TE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiBT T TT

Interim — HK$0.06 (2010: HK$0.06)
per ordinary share

Less: Dividend for shares held under the
Company'’s restricted share award scheme

Proposed final — HK$0.07 (2010: HK$0.06)
per ordinary share

Less: Dividend for shares held under the
Company'’s restricted share award scheme

HHARR B — B A% E 38 A%0.06
BI(ZE—ZF :0.0687T) 14,926 15,164

B IRBA QT BB

RENET RIS <RI TS
B, (282) (356)
14,644 14,808

R R AR B — SR T @A

0.078T(ZZE—ZF :

0.06%7T) 17,223 15,164
B ARIEAR BB RIS

REETEISE 2R TS

iesN (328) (356)

16,895 14,808

31,539 29,616

The proposed final dividend for the year are subject to the approval AEREZEIRREBLARBBRER
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general FEERR BT RS HIER - FRIIEE o

meeting.
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MR E M aE ()
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—-T——F+-A=+—HILFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 13. BAREERRBREEESREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based on BRREARETC R TIRES AR T @R
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the MR (L F RmF R FAE TSR
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of I 19 81 244,127 666 K ( —F — =
244,127,666 (2010: 246,649,080) in issue during the year, as F 1 246,649,0800% ) 5t & - EEH A
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share B - DASIBRA D B R HiIl AR 1) 52 B 5t &
award scheme of the Company. H NG -
The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount is based on SRS ERTNSEIIEES AT T @R
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the R E(HERNHAETE - StEfAEZ T
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in BRI AT EFRENEF T
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during AZFARABBITEBIREE A REBRE
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, RETBRIEAR R R BT EIR L 278
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to B LB E AR TP sk R
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or LA R AR AR AN A B 5 BR il B 1D 22 B AT 81 %
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under YA BB IER AR IR DA E
the share option schemes of the Company and the deemed vesting BER  AREoEREEFTA BT
of all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under WA IIRE TS -
the restricted share award scheme of the Company into ordinary
shares.
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based HEEREAREERINTASE W
on: ™
Earnings Z%
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based FRERREERF TR QAR E B
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent. RSB FE (LS R E o
Shares [;idn)
Number of shares
RGEE
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in ~ stE&REARZEF]
issue during the year used in the basic FTRERNE T
earnings per share calculation B INRE 2 244,127,666 246,649,080
Effect of dilution — weighted average number of #8822 — E @A NHE
ordinary shares: T g
Restricted shares awarded under the RIEARR 55 BR S8 D
Company'’s restricted share award scheme FENETEIRE 2
AR &R 2,529,245 3,955,767
246,656,911 250,604,847
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MR Y e ()
Year ended 31 December 2011 £

BT ——

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

F+-A=+—RIFE

14. W% - BERRE

Group AEE
Leasehold Computer Furniture,
[and and Leasehold equipment fixtures and Motor
huildings  improvements and software  other equipment vehicles Total
HELH Bg %G BA 2ER
REF NE%E R&K Ethkta RE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Tian Tian Tian
31 December 2011 Z§--FtZR=t-A
At 31 December 2010 and at R-E-EE+-A=1-RE
1 January 2011: “T-—5-f-H
Cost A 4710 2,280 21777 1,435 2300 32,502
Accumulated depreciation Zitie (523) (2,190) (20,133) (1,139) (868) (24,853)
Net carrying amount FHTE 4187 90 1644 2% 1432 7,649
At 1 January 2011, net of W-Z2——&£-f-R"
accumulated depreciation Nk 2:iE 4,187 €0 1,644 2% 1432 7,649
Additions WE - 144 702 5 - 871
Disposals HE (379) - - - (761) (1,140)
Write-off s - (108) - - - (105)
Depreciation provided duringthe year £l ER (100 (34) (1,166) (84) (298) (1,682)
Exchange realignment i - - 5 3 59 67
At 31 December 2011, net of R-E—E+-f=1-H"
accumulated depreciation NREE 3,708 % 1,18 240 43 5,660
At 31 December 2011: R-E3—F+-A=1-A:
Cost A 4213 2,174 2473 1,581 983 31,424
Accumulated depreciation 2 (505) (2079) (21,289) (1,341) (551) (25,764)
Net carrying amount FHTE 3,708 % 1,185 20 43 5,660
MBMRGEEERAR —T— 455§ 91
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B 35 3 5 Y o (4D

Year ended 31 December 2011 & ZE

———G+-A=t+—AILFE

—=

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

14. Y5 - BB RHRE (&)

Group (continued) AEE(E)
Leasehold Computer Furniture,
[and and Leasehold equipment fixtures and Motor
huildings ~ improvements and software  other equipment vehicles Total
HELH HE EkRE B 2ER
kg NERE R Rt A& fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr Thr Thn ThR Thn
31 December 2010 ZE-EE{ZA=1-H
At 1 January 2010: R-E-ZE-f-A:
Cost HA 7652 2221 23702 2315 2210 38160
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (1,011) (2,062) (21,333) (1,985) (502) (26,893)
Net carrying amount BEE 6,641 159 2,369 330 1,768 11,267
At 1 January 2010, net of RZZ-TF-A-R
accumulated depreciation ThEnE 6,641 159 2369 330 1768 11,267
Additions ME = 60 740 59 - 89
Disposals 3 (2305) = = - - (2305)
Wre-off s - 9 2) (1) - (12)
Depreciation provided during the year FRRERE (149) (121) (1469) 93) (360) (219)
Exchange realignment A - 1 b 1 % kY
At 31 December 2010, net of RE-EE+-f=1-H"
accumulated depreciation M Zstine 4187 %0 1644 29 1432 7649
At 31 December 2010: R-B-FFT-A=1-B:
Cost A 4710 2,280 21,777 1435 2,300 32,502
Accumulated depreciation Zitie (523) (2.190) (20,133) (1,139) (868) (24.853)
Net carrying amount FAFE 4187 )] 1,644 2% 1432 7,649

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are held under the

AEBZHE T REFIIREATHE

following lease terms: EFHEA
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong: EHE
Medium term leases FRERFRE - 387
Mainland China: RE A
Long term leases RHIFEE 3,708 3,800
3,708 4,187

92

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BEYHE
Group AEH

2011 2010
—T——fF ZT-TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt s FTHT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZERAE 32,278 27,737
Disposal e (10,374) (2,899)
Net gain from a fair value adjustment ~ AF(EFEE > 405 6 9,068 7,440
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—HZEmEE 30,972 32,278

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and are held under the following lease terms:

AEBURBERPEAM ZIREDE
TIRBIA T HEFHREE ¢

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
Hong Kong: a8

Medium term leases HHETRE - 4,560
Long term leases KHIHE 26,800 24,000
26,800 28,560

Mainland China: E A
Medium term leases FRERFR S 2,300 1,950
Long term leases REHEE 1,872 1,768
4,172 3,718
30,972 32,278

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2011 by Landscope Surveyors Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at HK$30,972,000 on an open market, existing
use basis. The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 34(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2011, one of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HK$26,800,000 (2010: HK$24,000,000) was pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 28).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 134.

Mg R =B AR A

R-ZE——F+-A=+—0H A&E
ZEREYMFERBILBEEABRGERMR
HRAEMITARHMSIRIRG AgEE
B14/530,972,0008 7T - REWFEEAR
BEREHELETE=T - FEREH
R F R E M FE34() °

RZF-——H+ZA=+t—H " &%
EAUREBZHET - BREMERE
{E#9%26,800,0008 (= F—F 4 :
24,000,000/ 70) EERBIGHE T AE
B2 —RERITREE 2 AR am (P E28)

AEEREMEZE - FFBERE
134E -
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Year ended 31 December 2011 HE—E——F+_-_A=+—RIFE

16. GOODWILL 16. &
Group KEE
HK$'000
FAT
31 December 2010 R-E—EH+=-A=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2010 and R-E—ZF—F—BKE=_ZT—ZF
31 December 2010 TZA=T—RZEKAKREKEE 25,813
HK$'000
FAT
31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+=-A=+—8
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2011 and R—E——F—A—BAk=_F—F
31 December 2011 TZA=t+—BZRAKEREE 25,813
As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, PN TS REMI T2 4FTRF ML - AEEE
the Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that ?mﬁﬁ%f HM‘**&%@E'J £ 35 2 E 1%
permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations which B RN T —FRIFTEEEH

94

occurred prior to 2001 to remain eliminated against consolidated
reserves.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising
from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP

30 in

2011.

2001, was HK$7,227,000 as at 31 December 2010 and
The amount of goodwill is stated at its cost less cumulative

impairment of HK$3,890,000.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are
reportable segments, for impairment testing:

Application services cash-generating unit; and
Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

%ﬁ%/\fﬁZPﬁé@%‘szﬁiﬁ?éﬁ{%%ﬁﬁ

R-FT-FRMASHEBERIEI0
SRR B R R AE A Y RENES
FEz2HER R_T—ZFK-
Z——F+ZA=+—H%7.227,000
BT c BEEBREKRAR R RE
3,890,000/ T8 ABR °

AR AR

SURERRAME - BREXBEHKEZ
BEECOEETNIIREELEM(ER
HEDER) -

s ERARKHESELSM: K
e EREBARNTERBREELE

fiz o



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 #{Z=—F—F+=-A=+—HIFE

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
generating units are follows:

16.

e (&)

BAERERH (&)
NEESRESEASBN ZHEREED
™

Integration and

Application Services Solutions Services Total
FE B AR % SR RIBRT RIBH st
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--F _T-FF “E2--F _T-FF “E--F _T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
THET FHET THET FHET THET FAT
Carrying amount of goodwill FEREEE & 23,790 23,790 2,023 2,023 25,813 25,813

Application services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the application services cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections approved by senior
management covering a five-year period and extrapolated with a
zero percentage growth rate. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 10% (2010: 10%) and the cash flow projections
are determined based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the integration and solutions services
cash-generating unit has also been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections approved by senior
management covering a five-year period and extrapolated with a
zero percentage growth rate. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 10% (2010: 10%) and the cash flow projections
are determined based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the application services and integration and solutions services
cash-generating units for 31 December 2011 and 31 December
2010. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to the budgeted revenue is the revenue achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, adjusting for management’s
expected change in market demand and customer base.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating units.
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17.

18.

96

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS . Hth B\ EE
Group KEE
Deferred
development
costs
EERR R A
HK$’000
FAT
31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 —E——§+=ZA=+—8H
kR—2-2F+-A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010, RZE—ZTF—A—H ZZ2—ZF
1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011, +-—A=+—H —E—F—HF—HK
net of accumulated amortisation and impairment —E——F+-A=+—HBZKK
(3Nkr RETHESE RORETR) =
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010: RZZFE——F+=-H=1+—8H
EZZ—FF+-HA=+—Q:
Cost BN 13,026
Accumulated amortisation and impairment St R RE (13,026)
Net carrying amount BRESE =
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. RMIBARIZIRE
Company
PN
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Unlisted investments, at cost FELEMIRE - Tﬁz&ﬁ 45,633 45,633
Due from subsidiaries FE BT B8 A B 5RIE 224,598 266,964
270,231 312,597
Impairment” B * (91,643) (91,643)
178,588 220,954

An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted investments/amounts due
from subsidiaries in prior years because the recoverable amounts of these
investments/amounts due from subsidiaries were lower than their carrying
amounts. There was no change in the impairment amounts during the current
and prior years.

The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. RBAR2RE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEMBABZFFBENT

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to
Name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
HEMEL, BRIRE/ RN FEERA
a7 TR E B ZMERZHE EREDL TEER
2011 2010
“E-—f ZT-TH
Apex Result Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Property holding
KEESERAT B LRikoB T HENE
Apex Consulting Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Provision of human resources
B HK$2,500,000 management and product
B development services
2,500,000/ 7T REANEREERER
I R
Computer And Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Hong Kong US$1,000 REER
SRELRE,/BE T3@IR1,000% T
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
International Limited B8 HK$2 development and
R RS BR AT Non-voting deferred** implementation services,
HK$5,000,000 investment holding
LdkoBT and treasury
BREERLT REEARBERAARER
5,000,000/ 7T Bk REERK
ERRE
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Provision of system and network
Integration Limited BB HK$2 integration services
R ERBR AR TERET R A5 R AR S PR
Computer & Technologies PRC/Mainland China US$200,000 100 100  Trading of computer networks
International Trading (Shanghai) #F &,/ &AM 200,000 7T and system platforms
Company Limited* ENARZ5TES
RE RS ERTE/ BERE S
(LB)BRAR:
Computer & Technologies PRC/Mainland China US$3,500,000 100 100 Provision of system and network
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.#* /R 3,500,000 7T integration services
EEREHE S ZRBR AR R A R AR ERRTS
Computer & Technologies British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding and
Investment Limited Hong Kong TERIET treasury investments
RERLEE /B REZBRRERRE
C&T (Guangzhou) Investment Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Property holding
Limited EE TEk2ET RZEIES
R (BN REFRAA]
RBMEAREEERAT 2448 97
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

98

18. RIBLTZKRE (&)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to
Name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
TR ERTRE/ KRR ELRA
A% TR EEbH HEMERZHE EEEAL TEEK
2011 2010
—E——f5 ZT-ZF
C&T (Hong Kong) Investment British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Property holding
Limited Hong Kong LRERIET BENE
B (BB REFR A RERUHE/BE
C&T (Nanjing) Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Property holding
R (AR REBRAA BE LERET REME
C&T (Shanghai) Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100  Property holding
B (L8 REBB AR BE LERET RAENE
Computer And Technologies Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
Solutions Limited Bt A% 10,000/ T development and
RS HEERAR implementation services
REZARREATRER
i
Computer & Technologies Solutions PRC/Mainland China US$1,128,000 100 100 Provision of IT solutions
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.# B/ E A, 1,128,000% 7T development and
RS ORI) BRA R implementation services
REEARBRAARER
B iR
Global e-Business Services (BVI)  British Virgin Islands/ Class A US$1,600 100 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong Class B US$400 REER
RBRUEE,/EE AfE 1,600% T
BE 4003 T
Global e-Business Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Provision of enterprise
BRETRERBEARAH BB HK$1,010,000 software applications
Lak services
1,010,0007% 7T RECEHHEARS
Global e-Trading Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100  Provision of e-business
EESREER AT B HK$2,501,000 related services, including
TR government electronic
2,501,000/ 7T trading services
REEFESABRY
BDREBNETFESR%
e-tendering.com Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1 100 100 Provision of e-tendering
Hong Kong LRERIET services
RERLHE/BF REE FRIZRHG
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

18. RIBLATZIRE (&)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to
Name and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
B3 ERTRA/ KRR ELRA
A% TR E B EMERZHE EREDL TEEH
2011 2010
“E-—F ZT-TH
IPL Research Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 100 Provision of enterprise
B Non-voting deferred** software applications
HK$300,000 and related operation
L1005 T outsourcing services
BREERIL RECERHRAREEE
300,000/ 7T BN
Modern Lucky Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Property holding
MERAERAR B LTiRRoB T HENE
Waywin Limited British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong TEA%10,0005% T REER
RERLEE /B
Y&A Professional Services Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary 99.993 99.993  Provision of IT solutions
a5 HK$2,169,000 development and
L implementation services
2,169,000/ 7T REBARBRBATRER
RE MRS
ERRRHERAR PRC/Mainland China ~ Ordinary US$450,000 100 100 Provision of enterprise
HE /R, L E[%450,000% T software applications

##

* %

The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under PRC

law.

The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under

PRC law.

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general
meeting. In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, the holders of the deferred
shares carry the rights to receive a return of capital after the holders of the
ordinary shares have received a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary

share.

Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the
above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group or of particular importance to the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Mg R =B AR A

and related operation
outsourcing services
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 19. AIHERE
Group
rEH
2011 2010
=F——F B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR FHTT
Club membership debenture, at fair value SHEHEES  HATE 2,000 1,850
During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s available- FRN - REMEERARER 2 AEER]
for-sale investment recognised in other comprehensive income HHEREBRFE150,0008T(ZF
amounted to HK$150,000 (2010: HK$200,000). —=4F : 200,000/ 7T) °
The fair value of the club membership debenture is based on CHSEESZ AFETARTRIEME
available market prices. 8 .
INVENTORIES 20. &
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—F——F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$000
FHR FHIT
Work in progress pas--Uair 12,431 18,482
. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. ERESRIKEKRERE
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FAET
Trade and bills receivables FEUNE 5 R R BN E B 69,110 77,676
Impairment JRE (1,495) (3,235)
67,615 74,441




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

AR5 3R 5 YA (AR

Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 21.

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group'’s trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on
credit. For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit
period is generally within 120 days, except for certain projects
with longer implementation schedules where the period may
extend beyond 120 days, or may be extended for major or specific
customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding trade receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade

and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the payment due date and net of

provisions, is as follows:

W E 2 R R R RS ()

EMENAE - REAEE RS LK
FRERBNE  ARERETFPZES
A AR R & MR T R ERF P 2
RFEZHME  AIREEREINK - &
TR o ZFABRKREAETI
HLEF  AEBEEH-—KRIER
120K - tEfr A %A B it THIEE » 8
EEHRAERERBB120K - AT
ERRERFPEREEH - AEE—&H
BREHEREERKE SRS S
REEEIN T HEMBPFTBELEL - N
SEWEH U FERT A T EAmL
FHEMEEMESE - BRKE SRR
KRR AR o

RS RARIEH D - FERE R
SR A 30 B S A IR 2 B
BT :

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—EF——F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Not past due 380 HA 32,579 43,962
Within 3 months =@EAR 29,763 26,151
4 to 6 months U EYNEPE 4,155 2,811
More than 6 months A A £ 1,118 1,517
67,615 74,441

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables

are as follows:

FEW B ZIRF BB RBEZINT

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FHIT
At 1 January n—A—H 3,235 7,957
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BRERREEE (fI:E6) 188 296
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B OREEE (iiE6) (1,580) (2,508)
Amount written off as uncollectible WsH AT REW Bl & 58 (378) (2,588)
Exchange realignment & H A 30 78
At 31 December W+—_A=+—H 1,495 3,235
M ZREEERAT —T— 545 101
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21.

102

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables
is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$1,495,000 (2010: HK$3,235,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$1,495,000 (2010: HK$3,235,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to amounts that
were long outstanding and/or customers that were in financial
difficulties/in default and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

21.

R E B R B RE ()

bt pEUR R 5 BR TR 2 R (B B B R T
ERIBREE 51,495,000 T (—ZE—F
4 : 3,235,000/ 7T ) 2 {6 Bl B 5 (B FE Uk
E SEREH Z B 51,495,000 7T ( —
T—F4F : 3,235,000/ 7T) °

852 BE W E 5 BB R B R 3R
BN REHPBREREZEFPE
B8 - TREIR BEU @ BED ) FRUERIR o

KR BRIE S FENE 585 %R ERE
BRI :

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FiBT
Neither past due nor impaired R EAZORE 32,579 43,962
Less than 1 month past due wHE DR —1E A 21,268 19,246
1 to 3 months past due BH—Z==EA 8,495 6,905
4 to 6 months past due B HAPY = X fE A 4,155 2,811
More than 6 months NMEA E 1,118 1,517
67,615 74.441

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of diversified customers, including certain departments/
units of the Government of the HKSAR, for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good reputation
and/or have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22.

RNRIE » B R EMERKIR

Group Company
AEE RATF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F =ZZ-ZF =—EB--F ZIZE-ITF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FBT FET FET
Prepayments TEfS IR 2,020 2,850 256 259
Deposits and other e M E b e A

receivables 4,293 6,826 - -
Impairment NEREN - (600) - -
6,313 9,076 256 259
The financial assets included in the above balances that were BIER il 45 A B B EUGRIE 2 KR
not impaired relate to receivables for which there was no recent BV BEENTHASEBREEE - R
history of default. Provision for impairment of other receivables as T-ZF+-A=+—H ' HMaERR
at 31 December 2010 was a provision for individually impaired B RERERERBEEIRANER
other receivables of HK$600,000 with a carrying amount before 2,697,000/ 7T 2 & 51 2 3l {8 H At i Wk
provision of HK$2,697,000. The movements in the provision for TEEH 2 ¥ #5600,000/8 7T © E Ath UL

impairment of other receivables are as follows: TIERERE I EEBWT

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—E——F T —TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
At 1 January R—HA—H 600 =
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) B ERREEE (Mi6) - 600
Amount written off as uncollectible AN A] Ye [ IR (600) =
At 31 December nNt+=—A=+—H - 600

MM RGEEERAT —T——FFF 103
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23.

104

CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES

23. REEL

Group

REE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits S D EAB YIS ER

less recognised losses to date A E R e 1E 360,825 334,811
Less: Progress billings B EEE R AREE (359,845) (329,939)
980 4872
Gross amounts due from contract customers FEI A 4E P IIBAE 8,939 13,228
Impairment E (4,940) (5,698)
3,999 7,530
Gross amounts due to contract customers JER AR PERIARE (3,019) (2,658)
980 4872

The movements in the provision for impairment of amounts due
from contract customers are as follows:

ERENEFFIBRERE 2280
T

Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
At 1 January m—A—H 5,698 6,263
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B elREEE (HizE6) (758) (565)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 4,940 5,698

Included in the above provision for impairment of amounts
due from contract customers is a provision for individually
impaired contract receivable amounts of HK$4,940,000 (2010:
HK$5,698,000) with a carrying amount of HK$5,278,000 (2010:
HK$5,960,000). The individually impaired contract receivables
relate to amounts that are long outstanding and the receivables are
not expected to be fully recoverable.

Amounts due from contract customers that were not impaired were
not past due and relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record/relationship with the Group and/
or for whom there was no recent history of default. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

BAVEERS ARZMBEE

LOSS
Group
REH
2011 2010
—E——F —EF-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets: ERBEE -
Listed debt investments, at market value EMETE 7 FHERRE 3,187 847
Current assets: MENEEE -
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, EMEFE 2 E&E EmRA
at market value wE 20,100 10,648
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 23,287 11,495

The listed debt investments were designated upon initial
recognition as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
they are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
and investment strategy, and information about the investments is
provided on that basis to the Group’s key management personnel.

The listed equity investments included under current assets at 31
December 2010 and 2011 were classified as held for trading.

ER EHEBRETREE R R E E
REERBIEAFEEETERFER
B HRAERREEEREAFE
REBBEANRZHBEE  MEMZER
BZERDEEREERASB Z T &
EEABLRM -

HAR-Z—BER-F——F 17
=+ AZRDAEL ETBRARER
AERIHERHE -
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 25. e R ERBEESEEURCEWN

DEPOSITS RITERM
Group Company
F&EE NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E—-F —Z-TF —E--F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT FiER FHT
Cash and bank balances He RBTER 10,774 133,577 4,116 1433
Time deposits EHF 272,831 191,484 - -
343,611 325,061 4,116 1,433

Less: Pledged time deposits for 3 : BR1TBAVRE /HE(R
performance bonds/ FTERTEHEN
guarantees issued by
banks (31,774) (37,560) - -

Cash and cash equivalents SAMBMRBR RS
asstated in the statementof ~ RERBELBE
financial position 311,837 287,501 4,116 1,433

Less: Non-pledged time deposits i : WEEF R E A HBB={EA

with original maturity of ZEEATHEN
more than three months
when acquired (6,228) (5,911)
Cash and cash equivalents SAGARERERZAS
for the purpose of the RERBSEE
consolidated statement of
cash flows 305,609 281,590
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances RIPLEHREE H - KRER U ARK
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi (TARENHSHEZBESRIETERERT
(“RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$192,380,000 (2010: T3 2049 5192,380,0008 (=2 — =
HK$209,530,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other £ : 209,530,000 7T) - ARAT B
currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange B i A H b s . (BARIE B B O E S
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and B (& [ 45 TE - EERNETIRETE -
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted AREFEEFQIETETINELB 2R
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised 1THE AR IE 5 40 5 H A HNEE o

to conduct foreign exchange business.

106 ANNUAL REPORT 2011  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



Notes to Financial Statements (continued) _

7 3R 25 P & (48D
Year ended 31 December 2011 &E—E——F+—-A=+—HILEE

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 25. RE&REFBREEEURCER

DEPOSITS (CONTINUED) RITEM(E)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITIRSBESRIETERARIZE
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying TRzt 8 - SEATHERNERSENF
periods of between one and six months depending on the —ZEXEATE  RIEAREFRENREE
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at & FHSkimE - WILAR R HE BT AF
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances KRB - RITEERTHEZHEFER
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no EER BT BAWEERGCEE 2 IRBTT °

recent history of default.

26. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. BNEZRM - HttEAFRIER

PEST R IE

Group Company

rEHE KAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F CZIZT-ZTF =—EBE-—-F ZIZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T FHBT FHIT
Trade payables BB SRR 52,555 56,370 - =
Other payables E A ERIFRIE 23,276 25,573 - -
Accruals FEEtRRIE 14,186 13,197 266 209
90,017 95,140 266 209
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RERPHLEER  BNESERES
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows: RERE SRR - HE bS58 R ER

RIBRBBAMNRE ZRESTAT

Group

AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —=-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Current BNER 50,743 52,914
1 to 3 months —z=={@A 1,569 3,065
4 to 6 months L EYNEPE 106 258
Over 6 months ~NMEA A E 137 133
52,555 56,370
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BB SRR AT 8 - —ARIZ30KEE

settled on 30-day terms. PR&EE °
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27. (TEBKTIA
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—2——F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Assets BE
Interest rate swaps | 2= 5 H 91 _
Liabilities aE
Forward currency contracts REIFEBEL 221 121
Interest rate swaps %12 EA - 81
221 202

The main purpose of the above contracts and swaps entered into
by the Group is to manage the Group’s exchange rate and interest
rate exposures. Such forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps are not designated for hedge purposes and are measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

The net fair value gains of these derivatives amounting to
HK$72,000 (2010: loss of HK$202,000) were credited to the
consolidated income statement during the year.

AEERIVA LR RERZEEZRN
REBAEEELYZEXRAEER -
ZERREE QO RN R B FEEE
RS AR - DIRAFELERAR -

FA - WENETAEZATFERSF
BR7200ET(ZE—FF : 18
202,000/87T) * Jhat AsRB WEERA ©

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 28. MIEBITHREREEERR
2011 2010
S —z-7
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
Group A5H BRFE(%) o] FHET ANFIE%) 55 TEx
Current B
Bank loans - secured RITEF-BFHER 1.10-1.85 2012 22526  1.10-1.23 2011 26,520
Analysed into: B TIEBHH -
Bank loans repayable: [EEBHITER :
Within one year or on —ERRIEER

demand - note (a) —MizHa) 22,526 26,520
Notes: B
(@)  These bank loans contain a clause that gives the lender the unconditional (a)  WERITERMB B T ER T EIGERE

right to call the loans at any time and, accordingly, are classified as current REREEEFESN  ARtRRSEED

liabilities. Not taking into account the repayment on-demand clause, based on oo TR RIRBRERIE - RELEE

the maturing terms of these loans, these loans are repayable within one year. RZFH - WEEHER—FAERER -
(b)  These bank loans are denominated in United States dollars. (b)  HFRITEEUERTEFE -
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29.

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)  28. MESR{TIEEREEE T (H)
Pledge of assets BEEER
The Group’s bank loans and other banking facilities are secured by: AEBZRITERLEMBITEEREHRTHIEE
A
0] certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to HK$31,774,000 at 31 (i) REBR-_ZE——F+-_A=+—HH
December 2011 (2010: HK$37,560,000); and 31,774,000 T2 EMER(ZE 4 ¢
37,560,000 7T) « &
(ii) an investment property of the Group with a carrying value of HK$26,800,000 as (ii) REBR-_Z—F+_A=+—BKm@
at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$24,000,000). {B3£26,800,0008 T2 REMHE(ZT—F
4 : 24,000,000/7T) °
DEFERRED TAX 29. IEIEFIIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FRN - RERBEBAELREEZEEMN
year are as follows: N
Deferred tax liahilities EEFIEEE
Group rEH
2011
—B——F
Revaluation Withholding
of properties taxes Total
L/ E SRR FEHIBE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT T
At 1 January 2011 R-_ZE—F—F—H 2,933 496 3,429
Deferred tax credited to the income FRRUEREA
statement during the year* ZIRIERA IR (454) - (454)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R-E—F+—H
31 December 2011 =+—RAZIERERE
BERE 2,479 496 2,975
Mg EsEEARA —T——FFR 109
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29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

29. IEFERIE (M)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued) EESIEEEE)
Group (continued) AEE(E)
2010
—E-TF
Revaluation Withholding
of properties taxes Total
VI E G TEFOH BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA&T FH&TT FAT
At 1 January 2010 Rn=—Z—=FF—H—H 1,813 496 2,309
Deferred tax charged to the income FARARB R IR
statement during the year* ZIEERIE* 1,198 = 1,198
Deferred tax credited to equity upon — RHERE W EREF
the disposal of an investment property 5+ AR ZS#EZE
ZIRRERIA (78) = (78)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at N —_E—FF+ A
31 December 2010 =+—HZIELERIE
RfERE 2,933 496 3,429
Deferred tax assets BEHREEE
Group REE
Losses available for
offsetting against
future taxable profits
AT 8 AR 2R
ERBET ZEE
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January n—H—H - 591
Deferred tax charged to the income statement FRRW RN
during the year* ZIRSER I - (591)
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEE
MIBEERE - =
2 Total net deferred tax credited to the income statement during the year * FARKRREAZFELCHERER

amounted to HK$454,000 (2010: a charge of HK$1,789,000) (note 10).
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29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. IEFEBIIE (&)
Deferred tax assets (continued) EERIEEE(E)
Group (continued) REE (E)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$10,479,000
(2010: HK$23,279,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and/or due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams of the companies in
which the losses arose, and it is currently not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the Mainland China, the applicable
rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

At the end of the reporting period, in respect of certain of
subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China, no
deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately HK$1,033,000 at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$465,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

M EBEBERA

RBEPREER - XAEBRBBEL
REER IR IAE B 410,479,000/ 7T (=
T—Z4 : 23,279,000/ 7T) - AIEEFRH]
HHELEBBR ORI R RERTODN -
HERFEATERRA - HRZEEE
KECA-RATFHESBEZIMNBAR
5/ SR mR %S B A B RRERDE
WARRTS BRI TRRIA KB R R RN
K AT BEA FERRT ) A m] A (R HE S A 75 S
1B MU RRZFEREDELCHEE
o

RIBPBEEEMETEL - NP BEAHAK
M ZINEEEABIMIEETIRREE
RIO% AR RGN - BARED =
TTNF-A-RARER  WERRZ
ERHFT_A=+—BZEMELR
) o R B A EINGIRE & RDA
R ERBBRK - AIATRAERIE
BB R o AREER T B AL 2 Y
BRARERZRERS%E10% ° FEt -
B-_TZN\F-A—BE AEEEHR
& B AR L 2 T A R FTE A
B D IR 2 B S BASTBM o

RREHEAER  AEBIERER
FERHAK S 2B/ TH B A R AERE
SRANTEINF R T FE 8 2 TR RERIE T
TiIE - ARBEEBRA  RATARRE
L EH B AT TR RED RZERF)
R-ZT——F+-"HA=+—0 B&F
Bl At 2 M B A B R B8R 2 =
A 491,033,000 0 ( ZE—ZF
465,000/ 7T) °

AR g E [ H BRI S M E &
PSR
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112

SHARE CAPITAL 30. B
Shares 8l
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Authorised: ETERRA
1,000,000,000 (2010: 1,000,000,000) 1,000,000,0008% ( = ZF —Z4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 1,000,000,0000% )
SRAEC. 1078t 2 L@k 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBRRA
246,040,198 (2010: 252,728,198) 246,040,198f% (=& —Z4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 252,728,198%)
FEEO. 108 T iR 24,604 25,273

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary

RABEHTERRAE - BIEERN

share capital, share premium account and shares held under the RIEH R IR (0 R T BB 2 I &
restricted share award scheme is as follows: BoMENT
Shares
Number Share  held under the
of shares Issued premium  restricted share
in issue capital account  award scheme Total
REARH
Notes BEf BB B RGBT
fifiE RABE & BER BEZBRA @zt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
THL TEL TAL TAL
At 1 January 2010 NoE-BE- 252728198 25273 38493 (3946) 59,820
Purchase of shares held under the BEE E%Jﬂxf\ﬁﬁmiw
restricted share award scheme BTRG RV - - - (3,048) (3,048)
Vesting of shares held under the BRHIRARREEET
restricted share award scheme Rih%E 32 - - - 589 589
At 31 December 2010 and RZE-B4+ZA=1-H
at 1 January 2011 FR=5——%-A—-H 252,728,198 25273 38493 (6,405) 57,361
Repurchase of shares BE R 30(a) (6,688,000) (669) = = (669)
Vesting of shares held under the ARGIRGDREHEET
restricted share award scheme B GE 3?2 = = = 1,229 1,229
At31 December 2011 RZF—Ft-A=1-H 246,040,198 24,604 38,493 (5,176) 57921
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31.

30. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 30. BA(4&)
Note: ffsT -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company repurchased its own (a) BEE—Z——F+-_A=+—HItFER
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: IR AR B A2 P B Bl AR & E AR 2 B A
T
Number Highest Lowest Aggregate
of shares price paid price paid consideration
repurchased per share per share paid
EfRER ERER
Month/year /8 BERAEE BSER RIKER R E
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHET
March 2011 —T——F=H 2,158,000 1.89 1.81 3,970
April 2011 —ZET——FmA 1,052,000 1.90 1.88 1,997
May 2011 —ET——%FHA 716,000 1.89 1.84 1,341
June 2011 —ZT——F XA 44,000 1.83 1.82 80
September 2011 —T——FNA 366,000 151 1.49 555
November 2011 —T——%+—A 1,448,000 1.52 1.47 2,193
December 2011 —F2—%+=A 904,000 1.60 1.52 1,403
6,688,000 11,539
The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly, the issued share FrEg Rkt EaEss - Bt - XRARIZE#
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares 1TRR AN A It S5 B 49 2 TE 1B R > 49669,0007
of HK$669,000. The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of 7T ° BB B A0 FT 1+ & 10,870,000/ T E B
HK$10,870,000 was charged to the contributed surplus. BINBERRR -
Share options B A
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share BEARR RIERAERT 8 KRB ZAT 2%
options issued under the schemes are included in note 31 to the 1TEBRRHE 2 FHIBE N B TS s RS HIRE3L -
financial statements.
Restricted shares BRHIR G
Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and the NN B R B 2B AT & RARIR AT
restricted shares held under the scheme are included in note 32 iﬂﬁﬁz*ﬁ@%ﬂﬁxf“ﬁ 15 - ER IR
to the financial statements. EHIEEI2 o
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 31. BRERE
The Company operates a share option scheme adopted in 2002 AARRZEE —FHRMA—IBERAERT
(the “2002 Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing (=2 =F5r8l]) TEBMAY

incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The 2002 Scheme
entitles the holders of share options granted under the scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at any time during
the exercisable periods of the options. Eligible participants of
the 2002 Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the
Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The 2002 Scheme
became effective on 30 May 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

RS

AEEEBRUIFLER A ER2 A
ERHABNEEY -  — TR _F5H 8N
TRAERBZEMR TBEEZAL
R - NERENITERA  ERRE
ARBZEBE - — T _F5tdlzA
BR2EEREARRER(BREEYL
HRITEE)  AEEEMESR - AA
SEHEBERIRBHEER  AKE
BEP  ARABRREARBMBARZ
ERZEHERRR - —2T_FFrE8IN=
EZ_FRAA=THER B - BR3E

SITEHIUER] » B RAIGHEIRNZ A
AT ERDAER -

EMARAT —T——FEER 113
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114

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2002 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
2002 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after certain vesting period and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options
or the expiry date of the 2002 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share option of the Company was outstanding, granted,

exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year and subsequent to
the end of the reporting period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

31.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BRET (&)

RE_ZFT_Fi8 BEEMERD
ZEARITEBERESE RS A HEHE
TTEERSE AR BMET B A 2 1T A D
10% » MER+ @AM - RE-F
Z_FHERZAERBRERLZE
BHERBITZBRNEEZRZHEARBE
A E BTN Z1% © EE—F
KB REE < BERR AR BRRNER
RE LA -

BYARAES (THEHHTERR
RIWFEMBEA T ZBIREASITM
SEMLIEMITESIE - tLSh - IRME
A+ =—EABRE T AR ERBRK
B FATESRREEABHEALLZ
BB R AR R PMEA R 2 B
TITMN 20.1% © KB RRBREZAE
(REARBBROHNBRER L B2
ERFHE ) #85,000,000/8 7T - RIZAE
FHERRREG EEGIRRALAE

RERHZBREANES BB
2BRAAEM - MERAAINAHRLE
TTZEBARE - ROBREZ1TE
HHESSET  YhETHREBREKEHE
w5 miEim BTN SERIR2BRER
HEst+F T _F5 32 2HA
(ABRRERE) -

BREZITEERESFSET - BTA
ERTIMEF2ESE VAR ERK
R 2 ME A B BB X AT 2 T
B ROVARABRMHREERZEEZ B A
R AR5 BEB AR 2 PR HE -

R AR SR A T H A AL B SR
BRRGREZHER -

ARABRFERRBE R TEREE
AHAITE - ERE - 2176 - ©&EH
KRR BAAE o



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

32. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME 32. BRFIR G EEETE

On 22 May 2008, the Company adopted a restricted share
award scheme (the “Award Scheme”) under which shares of the
Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
employees (including directors) of any members of the Group
(the “Selected Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of
the Award Scheme and an irrevocable trust (the “Trust”) was also
established by the Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme.
The Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date and,
unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date. Further details of the Award Scheme are
also set out in a circular of the Company dated 29 April 2008.

The aggregate number of Awarded Shares currently permitted to
be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout the duration of
the Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit,
the maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be awarded
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company for any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the relevant grant. The maximum number of
Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company.

Pursuant to the rules governing the operation of the Award
Scheme (the “Scheme Rules”), the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) shall select the Selected Employees and
determine the number of Awarded Shares to be awarded. The
Board shall cause to pay the trustee of the Trust (the “Trustee”)
the purchase price and the related expenses from the Company’s
resources for the shares of the Company to be purchased by the
Trustee. The Trustee is a third party appointed by the Board for the
administration of the Award Scheme. The Trustee shall purchase
from the market such number of shares of the Company awarded
as specified by the Board and shall hold such shares until they are
vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions,
which might include service and/or performance conditions,
specified by the Board at the time of making the award and
become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the
subject of the award, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant
vested Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost. The Selected
Employee however is not entitled to receive any income or
distribution, such as dividend derived from the unvested Awarded
Shares allocated to him/her. The said income or distributions
shall be used by the Trustee for payment of the Trustee’s fees or
expenses or for purchase of further shares of the Company for the
Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
shares of the Company held under the Trust, including, inter alia,
the Awarded Shares and further shares of the Company acquired
out of the income derived therefrom.

Mg R =B AR A

RZBEZENFREA=-+=H ' "R
M —I18 7 R HI I (0 SEE 5T &) ([ 2B 51
211 o Bt - RARIAIABEER R
X EAEBEAKE AR ZEBHRIE
B(eEER)((KHEES ERAR
AR ([ 28BS 1) - AR R I GLE2ED
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ENET 2 2 A B B A BRIFIAR
1EEIBET - B EZ BB TERAER -
3o e 2 =N 9 A NI = B
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AR RIE R SN EME AR 2
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date and the
Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment expense
of HK$1,057,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$1,237,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 1,246,000 Awarded
Shares (2010: 690,000 Awarded Shares) were vested and
transferred to certain executive directors of the Company and
certain employees of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2011, upon the vesting of certain Awards Shares, the
carrying value of the shares held under the restricted share award
scheme account of the Company was reduced by HK$1,229,000
(2010: HK$589,000) and such amount was transferred to the
share-based payment reserve of the Company.

No ordinary shares of the Company were acquired by the trustee
for the Award Scheme. During the year ended 31 December 2010,
the Trustee acquired for the Award Scheme 2,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company through purchases on the open market at
a total cost (including related transaction costs) of approximately
HK$3,048,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 250,000 and 440,000
Awarded Shares were awarded to an executive director and certain
employees of the Group, respectively, which will be transferred
to the executive director and the employees at nil consideration,
subject to the satisfaction of certain service and performance
conditions, upon vesting in various tranches, with the last tranche
ending on 31 December 2015, 30 April 2016 and 30 September
2016, respectively.

The following Awarded Shares were awarded and outstanding
under the Award Scheme during the year:

AR R EEEE (&)

BE-2——F+-A=+—ALF
R EBRG2 ATERARDRHR
511 58 ) 5.2 T (B DR A SR T R
BB £ 8 AR5 4 SR 1,057,000/ 7
—ZT—FT4F : 1,237,000 )5 E °

REEZZE—F+-_A=+—HLEF
B ARRBETHRITESERAEEET
R BB L] 24600008 £E /@ A% (7
(ZZE—Z4F : 690,000/% HEEIFX 1D ) ©
REBE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HItF
B BTEERNDESRER  RAQR
BRAIRGEBTERE THAEZK
PEREER 21,229,000 T(—E—=
& : 589,000/ 7T) ' X EEEEEAR
DR FRE

EREAGESERAIBELAAR LA
R RBE_T—TF+_A=+—H
HEFE - IFEARBEBEEBER
R 5512 413,048,00078 TTAAR AN (B 15
MR 5 A) B8 A 2,000,000 A A 7]
EIBAY -

REZE-_ZT—F+_-_A=+—HItF
B ARBRAEE—BRITEERE
T 1& 8 5 5l % 1 250,000 f% K 440,000
M EERN AR D - BB D AN TR EEE
FZATEEREE WS EKIEH
R7E R FRIRIGEROHERE - &E—it
PRR=—FE—RHAFE+=-_A=+—H " =
E—RNEONA=1tBER-Z—~FNA
=+HRE -

FR - RIBEREF B SR E R HARITE
Z R AT

2011 2010
—E——F —T-ZF

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
fair value unvested fair value unvested
at grant date Awarded at grant date Awarded
per share Shares per share Shares

REH A i) =
SR ME REE Bk BB
FHATFE RERGEE FHRTE RERHEE

HK$ HK$

BT BT
At 1 January wn—A—H 0.77 5,040,000 0.61 4,620,000
Awarded during the year ~ FREER 1.39 690,000 1.35 1,270,000
Vested during the year FAEFE 0.76 (1,246,000) 0.61 (690,000)
Forfeited during the year SRR 0.75 (1,078,000) 1.35 (160,000)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—8 0.91 3,406,000 0.77 5,040,000
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Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

32. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

33.

Out of the total of 6,960,000 Award Shares awarded during the
year and in prior years, 2,250,000 Awarded Shares were awarded
to the executive directors of the Company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 3,406,000 Awarded Shares unvested under the Award
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.4% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue at that date.

RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 39 to
40 of the financial statements.

The Group’s contributed surplus originally represented the
excess of the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired at the date of their acquisition pursuant to the
Group reorganisation on 29 April 1998, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries, which are established in the PRC,
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as
to use. The subsidiaries are not required to effect any further
transfer when the amount of the reserve funds reaches 50%
of its registered capital.

The Group’s goodwill reserve represents goodwill which
arose on the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior years
and remains eliminated against consolidated reserves, as
further explained in note 16 to the financial statements.

Mg R SEEER

32. ARHIRDEREE(F&)

33.

RFEFARBEFE  £REZAHK
6,960,000R% 22BN - ERIAR A
TEF R 12,250,000 RN (5 °

REEL SR BHREE R - ARAIRE

B A &l N

RERBEOEE R

3,406,0000% * (AR RIRZ B 2 B 31T
LBARL1.4% o

it

(a)

REM

AREERBRITRBEFENRHE
SRMEES 2N MERE
SEIVEA0R ZERA BB HRA

AEBZHABBRRERER
—AANFRAZ+TABZEER
Bl EUBEHNEBARZA
B 2EMBrRcB@EEFE
BHEARRRAERIBRAEMET
BipzEfE -

REIBBECRERZART
BUEB RME WP B Z A
SENBERAR BB ER
EfmES  WRHIER - B
EMBARZRBEESENER
MEARZ50%1% - % EWEB QA
BBV — S -

BN SR A M s 168 — 2
o AEBEEEFERERNBE
FERBETHBRARELEZR
B REERRA AL o

T —EER 117
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33. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 33. & (&)
Company (h) EAF
Shares
held under
Share Share-hased the restricted
premium  Contributed payment Retained  share award
account surplus reserve profits scheme Total
REERH
Rtz LES R
RIVEER BABH e RERH  KEZRG ait
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
itz Thr TiEn Thr Thr ThT Thr
At 1 January 2010 R_E-2F-F-H 33,493 176,488 2228 418 (3,946) 213681
Loss for the year TEERE - - - (12) = (12)
Purchase of shares held underthe — EERBR AR 22
restricted share award scheme BIEERR K7 = = = = (3,048) (3,048)
Vesting of shares held under the SENAR SR N EE:E
restricted share award scheme BIEERR 32 = = (589) - 589 -
Share award arrangements R R 32 = = 1237 = = 1,237
Final and special 009 dividends ~ REE-EBNERSR
declared BRE - 114 - - - 114
Interim 2010 dividend “2-EERERE 12 - (14,808) - = - (14,808)
Proposed final 2010 dividend BE-T-SERHRS 12 = (14.808) - - = (14,808)
At 31 December 2010 and R-5-%£
at 1 January 2011 TZR=+-BkK
“5—%-A-H 38493 146,986 2876 406 (6,405) 182,356
Loss for the year AEEER = - - 2) - 2)
Repurchase of shares ) 30 - (10,870) - - - (10,870)
Vestingof shares held under the ~ BBRERERHEE: 2
restricted share award scheme BTfERA k) - - (1,229) = 1229 -
Share award arrangements R R T 32 = - 1,057 = = 1,057
Final 2010 dividend declared BER_Z-ZEREHRE - 193 _ _ _ 193
Interim 2011 dividend —E——Fh#Rs 12 - (14.644) - - - (14,644)
Proposal final 2011 dividend RE-E-—ERHRE 12 - (16,89) - - - (16,89)
At 31 December 2011 W%
+-A=t-H 33493 104,770 2,704 404 (5,176) 141,195

118

The Company’s contributed surplus originally represented
the excess of the aggregate net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired at the date of their acquisition
pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 29 April 1998,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

exchange therefor.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a company may
make distributions to its members out of the contributed

surplus in certain circumstances.
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to three years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants falling due as follows:

34.

(a)

HEZH
EREAA
AEERBEEEMERHFHEHER
BEME (ML) @ #E 2

NF-E=EFE - BEER—
REFBEXNRELS DA
REEFBRTTREHBHEAS -

RZTE——F+=ZA=+—8 "
AREERBEEASEITN T
HREmz T B CEHEm
RB%EK RERSEENT :

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Within one year —FR 1,683 1,424
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EFERF(BREEEMSE) 343 1,004
2,026 2,428

As lessee (b) fEHREBA

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

AEERBEEMERHHEHER
ETHREYE - ZEVEMZ
EZHEMNF—ZE=%F-

RZF——F+ZA=+—0H"
AKERIER TR E R 2T
AIREH SRR AN B RENZ

REHSEENT :

Group

AEH
2011 2010
— —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one year —F R 6,238 4,558
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_EERF(BREEMF) 7,479 1,680
13,717 6,238
HERGEEARAT T —FFH 119
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

36.

120

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Guarantees were given to certain banks by the Company
for performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks
in relation to certain contracts undertaken by the Group
amounting to HK$16,360,000 (2010: HK$18,230,000),
of which HK$259,000 (2010: HK$2,637,000) had been
utilised.

The Company issued corporate guarantees to certain
suppliers of the Group in connection with certain purchases
from those suppliers. As at 31 December 2011, the
outstanding amounts due to those suppliers by the Group
amounted to HK$150,000 (2010: HK$150,000).

Guarantees were given to a bank by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company in connection with
certain banking facilities granted to a subsidiary amounting
to HK$106,240,000 (2010: HK$156,000,000), of which
HK$22,526,000 (2010: HK$26,520,000) had been utilised.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following material transactions with related parties during the

year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

35.

36.

HAREE

RBEHRAEER - WARMBEREA
ELBR e RARBWT ¢

@ ARRERAE@EAEZH
FeHmia FTRITRERERHK
16,360,000 T ( — T — T 4 :
18,230,000/8 7T ) Z JB 41R:5 ¥
1% Hh259 0008 T(—E—2
% : 2,637,000 T)EBA °

(b) ARFRERMAREETHER
BEmMRAZSEHERELQFE
ReR_F——FF+_A=1—
B AEBGBRZEHEHZKR
188 FRIA /150,000 T ( —F —
T4 ¢ 150,000 7T) ©

(c) ARARAREETFHBRFT
HEHBARER A
106,240,000 L ( — T — T 4 -
156,000,000 ) Z 4R 17 @k & A R
TIREER HTEHAHEAE
22,526,000 L (ZF —ZT F :
26,520,000/ 7T) °

BEALRS
Bt EMBEHRERMEHFL RS -

R RGERIN  AEEFAGHET
BRREALRS :

AEBTIEEEABZMEWT

2011 2010

- ke S 22

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Short term employee benefits pSEL=EEwl 9,575 10,313

Equity-settled share-based payment expense A E ARSI R 415 484

Post-employment benefits BER 18 1 T 98 112
Total compensation paid to key management TNEZEEEAS ZEBE

personnel 10,088 10,909

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2011 & E —ZE——F+_A=+—RHIFEE

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

37. BRIAZSE

BERHMBTARNGSHMEER 2R

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: HEEMAT
2011 Group —Eg——F NEEH
Financial assets BKEE
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BATERERAE
ZHBEE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
upon initial Held for Loans and financial
recognition trading  receivables asset Total
RS EXK AftHE
EEfEzRzE HFEE P RIE HHBEE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER TR TR TR
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE - - - 2,000 2,000
Trade and bills receivables BKE SRR R
e - - 67,615 - 67,615
Financial assets included in FAABRNFE - ZeRk
prepayments, deposits and Hit IR
other receivables MEE - - 4,293 - 4,293
Financial assets at fair value BATELER AR
through profit or loss AR 3,187 20,100 - - 23,287
Derivative financial assets ITERBEE - 91 - - 91
Pledged bank deposits BEHETER - - 31,774 - 31,774
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERHEEE - - 311,837 - 311,837
3,187 20,191 415,519 2,000 440,897
Financial liabilities BkaE
Financial
liahilities at
fair value
through profit Financial
or loss — liabilities at
held for trading amortised cost Total
BEATER DY+
BRARZH® AR 2
BE-HFEE BaE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FEx FET
Trade payables ERTE SRR - 52,555 52,555
Other payables Hip e F0A - 23,276 23,276
Financial liabilities included in accruals STABHIEZ BB E - 13,207 13,207
Derivative financial liabilities TEMBAE 221 - 221
Interest-bearing bank borrowings b BERITIEE - 22,526 22,526
221 111,564 111,785
BB AGREERAR —T—EFR 121
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED)  37. BT A5 (&)
2010 Group —E-TF RNEER
Financial assets MKEE
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
RATELEE AR
LB E
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
upon initial Held for Loans and financial
recognition trading receivables asset Total
RIS R Enk A E
EEEZRE HEEE R IR WBEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT T THT THET
Avallable-for-sale investment AEHERE - - - 1,850 1,850
Trade and bills receivables EWE FRT N ENER - - 74,441 - 74,441
Financial assets included in SHATBRFIE  RER
prepayments, deposits and HithfENIE
other receivables BIEE = = 6,226 = 6,226
Financial assets at fair value through AT EKIERARZ
profit or loss BIEE 847 10,648 = = 11,495
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER - - 37,560 = 37,560
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRSEBE - = 287,501 = 287,501
847 10,648 405,728 1,850 419,073
Financial liabilities BigasE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through profit Financial
or loss — liabilities at
held for trading amortised cost Total
BEAFEL DA 55
BRAR M AR
BE-HEEER BB aRE 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAET
Trade payables FETE ZIRM = 56,370 56,370
Other payables HAb R IA - 25,573 25,573
Financial liabilities included in accruals A RIE MRAE - 12,329 12,329
Derivative financial liabilities PTEMBAE 202 = 202
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B BERITIEE - 26,520 26,520
202 120,792 120,994

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED) 37.

BB TAZDER)

Financial assets BgERE
Company
RAE
Loans and receivables
B R EWRIE
2011 2010
—2-——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&T
Cash and cash equivalents R LERBEEE 4,116 1,433
Financial liabilities g 3=Ri
Company
RKAF]

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
DSBS AT Rz A s

2011 2010

—g-—-% -T-%TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TAET

Accruals JEETFRIA 266 209

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 38. AVER ATV EZHER

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of RIREHIREEH - AEE R AA T

the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities BEAENVEKAGEZEREREANTE
approximated to their fair values. HEE -

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank
deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade payables, financial liabilities included in
accruals, amounts due from subsidiaries and interest-bearing
bank borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.

MBEENBBEZATFENAZTABRHE
X577 (RAFFREERINERR S
T2ARZEBARK - THTERKR
TIRAMERt A -

RehERBELEE  CDERRTEX
B RBREZERLBRER Bk
Hip W IR - BN E SRR - StARE
AAREZMBAE - BUHTE QR0
LM BRITEE Z A HEEEREEM
o IZARZEIANIIBARE -
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38.

124

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of the available-for-sale investment is based on
available market prices.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with a
creditworthy financial institution. Derivative financial instruments,
including forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, are
measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing
and swap models, using present value calculations. The models
incorporate various market observable inputs including the credit
quality of counterparty, foreign exchange spot and forward rates
and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts and interest rate swaps are the same as their fair values.

Fair value hierarchy
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)

ANNUAL REPORT 2011

38.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

DFERDXHESREE(E)

EREREBRE R
HERFH -

FETIR™ S

AHEERE 2 A FETNRMSERS
H:ll o

AEBEREBRFZEBMEBEIILITE
MBETH - (TAMB T ABEEIING
BRRMEEE - TRBEEYEER
EHRBUZ HERNEE - RAR
Bt E - RERAMAZETRZT5H
AERBARE  BEXZHHZEER
B R - SME BN EA A = HABE R N N =K i
R BEHNES O RN R EH 2 FREE
BIRE 2 N HEREE °

DR EEREE

AEBRBATERREET LREM

BIEZR ¥1§-

F1IE - ZHERBEXRBERZEMS
ZARERBREFE 2 N FE

F2E  NHAEBAVTEEEERE

ZBABBY A R REEE
B2 HETETEZAFE

F UERBATEREERE
ZHABBYIEMSERAS
g (YIFBE A SR ABR)
ZEEEFEZ AFE



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 #{Z=—F—F+=-A=+—HIFE

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)  38.

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value:

Group
As at 31 December 2011

DFERAFESHRRRE(E)
DFESERES(H)
AT E B HE

A%
K=F——%+=A=+—A

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE H2E E3E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT FHIT FHIT
Available-for-sale investment: AHREERE
Club membership debenture SeEES = 2,000 = 2,000
Financial assets at fair value BRAFECEZARZ
through profit or loss: BBEE
Held-for-trading HIEEE 20,100 - - 20,100
Designated as financial assets at EEARATESER
fair value through profit or loss ANRZ S EE 3,187 = = 3,187
Derivative financial assets PTEMTSEE = 91 - 91
23,287 2,091 - 25,378
As at 31 December 2010 R-F—FFF-HA=1—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BB E2E E3E Hst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FHL FHIT FAT
Available-for-sale investment: AHEHERE ¢
Club membership debenture eMeEESs - 1,850 = 1,850
Financial assets at fair value BEAFELERAR S
through profit or loss: HBEE
Held-for-trading HIEEE 10,648 = = 10,648
Designated as financial assets at EEARATELIER
fair value through profit or loss ANEZWBEE 847 = - 847
11,495 1,850 - 13,345

The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3.

RS

ARAR-_B——FR_F—FF1_
A=t—BYEEMRAFEFEZY

FA- BIEEE2EMEERAFER
B MEIRFTEELAEAREL -

EEERAT —T——E£R 125
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

Group
As at 31 December 2011

DFERDXHESREE(E)
DFEEREEE)
BAFETEZRIE -

AEH
R-F——4#+=A=+—A

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E1E HE2E E3IE #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHIT FAT FHL

Derivative financial liabilities TERK AR 221 = 221
As at 31 December 2010 RoFE—FFEf—f=4+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E1E E2[E EIE Mt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHIT FHIT FHT

Derivative financial liabilities TEMRER - 202 = 202

The Company did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair ARBIRZE——F R =T —FTF+=

value as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39.

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to finance the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, trade and other payables, financial
liabilities included in accruals, derivative financial instruments,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and an available-
for-sale investment, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price
risk, debenture price risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in
relation to derivative financial instruments are set out in note 2.4 to
the financial statements.

126 ANNUAL REPORT 2011  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

A=t BYEEMZEAFEFEZH
HafE -

\

Mg E kR EE R ERBUGR

AEBZFEUBTERFBEERRT
TR ReRFRALEE - KHRR
TEE WENBIAECEEZREDAR
REBEZZBFRE - AEBEFHMEE
MBEERBE  WRKESRARE
WRIE - #Be REMEKFIE - BRAE
SRR R EMER IR - 5T AR FIE
ZHBasE MTEMBIA - BATE
RBSANRZUBEERATHEER
B hENBEERABIEERESE
BERBEE -

ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ’zlﬂ}xizjﬁﬁﬂ % AR &
R - SMNERRR - EERR - RAER
Efg - EHERER //lb@)éiﬂ R
BEReEMIRE T A ERE XA
HEFRRZBR - NEBARITLEMS
TAZ @t BN M mEME2.4



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

R E M (E)
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE T ——F+_-A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and time
deposits with floating interest rates.

The Group enters into interest rate swaps, in which the Group
agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between
fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to
an agreed-upon notional principal amount to manage certain of its
interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and time deposits).

39.

MR RERERRRRBE(E)

FREk
AEEREEM SN REFH AR ZER
TEEAEEFRRRITRBZHH X
RS REMFRER -

AERBEFTUNXISHELH - B - A%
BRENFERRE  HELHESES
ERAMEERATYECRIEEREHR
EEETHIRRE -

TRBER RS B TR 2 15
R - AREZ BB GEBTE
HERTEHRERFRAEYE) Y
Rl AR TR RBE Y GBS -

Group

rEE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

EEhigm, BRB AT R
() #m (R

HK$'000
T

2011 —E——F
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (146)
United States dollar ETT (25) (94)
RMB AR (25) (553)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 146
United States dollar =T 25 94
RMB AR 25 553

2010 —E—TF
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (217)
United States dollar =T (25) (167)
RMB AR (25) (321)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 217
United States dollar eIy 25 167
RMB AR 25 321
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiEMEERERBE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk SN R i
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures AEBEXR S EOEKER - HEMRE
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses DRENEEBNFAZEMNEREE
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’ LASNE BB B E 2 W A 2SR EE HE 2 K
functional currencies. The Group also uses forward currency AEHAY - REB@RBEEEINES
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk arising from interest- BRI TTEE VT BRITEEEY
bearing bank borrowings denominated in United States dollars. RYINEE [R\ B o
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures AEBEXR S EHEKRER - HEMKRE
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies DRAREEEMFRAZEMNEEE
other than the unit’s functional currency. Certain transactions DONEMEIT I EBE - ETRSTIAE
were predominately in United States dollar and RMB. As Hong T ARESE - ARBTHEETH
Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does 89 REBTEH > ELEBTERTS
not expect any significant movements in United States dollar and HIREREREE) o
Hong Kong dollar exchange rate.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRV EFAEEMESHESETE IS
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United M REBRHREHBEER 2B
States dollar and RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held af(REBEERABBATEBE
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the HETRARKERSIE Q] fE IR &
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). 2 BRERIRE o
Group
rEE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate hefore tax
EREHA RRBE AT
(TB&)  #m/ (R2)
% HK$’000
FEx
2011 —E——f
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against i P8 7T H T B
United States dollar 5 1,337
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB i H A REE(E 5 3,269
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against fin P& 7T H = T AHE
United States dollar (5) (1,337)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB it H AREAE (5) (3,269)
2010 —E-FTF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against BT HETRE
United States dollar 5 1,736
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB ST H ARBEE 5 2,369
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against BT H =TT HHE
United States dollar (5) (1,736)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB B TRAREAE (5) (2,369)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
listed debt investments, an available-for-sale investment, and
deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments. The Company is also exposed
to credit risk through the granting of financial guarantees,
further details of which are disclosed in note 35 to the financial
statements.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as 8.8% (2010: 5.4%) of the total
trade and bills receivables of the Group were due from certain
departments/units of the Government of the HKSAR, the Group’s
largest customer. Save as the above, there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk at the end of the reporting period.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in
note 21 to the financial statements.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group was exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 24) as at
31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010. The Group's listed
equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

39.
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MR RERERRRRBE(E)

FERK
REBEFZHRBARGCERTZE=F
EITR S o IRBAEKERECR - KD
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

39.

MEEREEBERBKGE)

PR A (B 4% L ez (4D

TR EMBERMEREHTE 15
TN BORFHERR SR ER - ARRRE
BEREE RARERHREHMEER
ZRTEBEEHI0%R - HEEB <&

Carrying Increase/
amount decrease
of equity in profit
investments hefore tax
REREZ RRBE AT R A
BREME B 0R)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT
2011 —E——F
Investments listed in Hong Kong: ERBLEMZIE
— Held-for-trading —BIEEE 20,100 2,010
2010 —EZF
Investments listed in Hong Kong: EEELMZRE
— Held-for-trading —REEE 10,648 1,065
Debenture price risk EHERRER

The Group has a club debenture investment in Hong Kong. The
fair value of the club debenture investment is affected by market
forces and other factors. The Group holds it for non-trading
pUrposes.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. In the
management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and bank balances, and time deposits deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Cash flows of the
Group are closely monitored by senior management on an ongoing
basis.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

39.

MR RERERRRRBE(E)

#EES R (E)
REEREEARITRA R ER®
THEEEBMBEE B R
™

Group NEH
2011
“E-—-F
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
REXREE PR=BR =ZE+=fEAR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TER
Trade payables ENESER 50,743 1,569 243 52,555
Other payables HifENTIE - 23,276 - 23,276
Financial liabilities included AR TUE BIEAG
in accruals - 13,207 - 13,207
Derivative financial liabilities TENKaE - - 221 221
Interest-bearing bank borrowings*  Fif B8/ T/E & 22,526 - - 22,526
Guarantees given to banks for RAEBAE 2 ETANES
performance bonds/guarantees  BAVRE /ERMEIET
issued in relation to certain REZER
contracts undertaken by the Group 259 - - 259
13,528 38,052 464 112,044
Group REE
2010
“Z-%F
Less than 3o less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
REXEER PR=EA Z=ET-fAAR FEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TEL AL AL
Trade payables ERBFEDR 52914 3,065 391 56,370
Other payables HitENTIR - 25,573 - 25,573
Financial liabilities included BB HRER
inaccruals - 12,329 - 12,329
Derivative financial liabilities TEMBRE - - 202 202
Interest-bearing bank borrowings* M BRITEE* 26,520 = = 26,520
Guarantees given to banks for RAEFREZ ETANEL
performance bondsiguarantees  BAIR:E /R MAE(T
issued in relation to certain REZER
contracts undertaken by the Group 2,637 - - 2,637
82,071 40,967 593 123,631
o Interest-bearing bank borrowings in the amount of HK$22,526,000 (2010: * M BIR1TIE B4 522,526,000/ T (=T —

HK$26,520,000) contain a repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time and, therefore, for the purpose
of the above maturity profile, the total amount is classified as “on demand”.

MRS EBER AR

T 1 26,520,000 L) B2 RITH EIEM
RERBERS BREIRE R 3K - dutbpt Bt
IR S - RESRRIREREE]
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. Bi¥EREKMEEBERBEK (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued) REE LR (E)
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe that BEELIETIRTE EFHE%EE
the borrowings will be called in their entirety within 12 months, and EBTeRt+ @A RNEKERBEHE
they consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the 2 BESRAEEEBIZRERMZEA
maturity dates as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation HIEHAES o HWEIGEEKR - A&
was made considering: the financial position of the Group at the BB 15 SR 5 & B 5 2 B IEUGIA R R
date of approval of the financial statements, and the lack of events I EAEM o
of default.
In accordance with the terms of the borrowings, the RBREEKER R-_ZE——F+=-H4
contractual undiscounted payments of HK$22,663,000 (2010: =1+—H  AHFRIIRM 22,663,000
HK$26,794,000) at 31 December 2011 are repayable within one BIL(ZE—ZF : 26,794,000/ 70 )78
year. R—FANEE -
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the A RMRIE S QARG IR SRR E R =R
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted SRS ERBUBAaGE B EBERD
payments, is as follows: i
Company P N/NC|
2011
—EgE——5F
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
REREE DPR=MEA et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FExT FHET
Other payables and accruals E e ERIE K
et A - 266 266
Guarantees given to banks for B FEE
performance bonds/guarantees BETEHELHELY
issued in relation to certain contracts R 28 R
undertaken by the Group SRITIRE 2 R 259 - 259
Guarantees given to a bank in R ERE 2B
connection with interest-bearing RITIEE MM —ME
bank borrowings to a subsidiary |RITIRME 2 &R 22,526 - 22,526
22,785 266 23,051
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BiEMEHEEERBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued) REESERE(E)
Company LN
2010
—E-TF
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
RERER LR=[EA 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FAT
Other payables and accruals HEARIER
FEETEIR - 209 209
Guarantees given to banks for MAERERE ST
performance bonds/guarantees BHEHEL
issued in relation to certain contracts  {R®:& ¥R A
undertaken by the Group RITIRMHE 2R 2,637 = 2,637
Guarantees given to a bank in R B AT M A
connection with interest-bearing RITEEMmMR—RE
bank borrowings to a subsidiary RITIRML Z R 26,520 - 26,520
29,157 209 29,366
Capital management ERER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to AEBEAEENEEBNEARER
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and EEFECENENTEFERENEAR
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business LEE - UXFHEEBRRRRE K&K
and maximise shareholders’ value. B -
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and REERBEBERA 2 BERIEEEE
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions BB - THREERERERERE
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain RAEL TR o A& B A AR B FHE LR
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend RRBEORE  MRRBERERNYET
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue R MRS AR E ARG - NEBW
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed BRI EARNREBEEST ©
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, BE_FT——FRK=ZZE—ZTF+=H
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended =+t—BHIEFER  AEEZERER
31 December 2011 and 2010. 1% - BRI P meg st o
Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’ AEBzERBMEREERILH 4
equity. % e
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. #LEMBHRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EEgN T _F=-A-+-_HBi#tE
by the board of directors on 22 March 2012. RIERETIBIRE o
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Particulars of Properties
Y EE S

31 December 2011 —E——%+_-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BREWE
Attributable
interest of
Use Tenure the Group
REBEEMN
Location i Bk B FH ExESH
1. Units 1, 2 and 3 on 11th Floor H5E Industrial Long term 100%
Westlands Centre 0 FB0m T#HA lease
No. 20 Westlands Road 2057 REAEE
Quarry Bay ZEFP L
Hong Kong 11#81 - 2K%3%
2. Unit No. Al on Level 21 R AREMBEI([FE]) Commercial Longterm 100%
Golden Eagle International Plaza TERE [EE3:E lease
No. 89 Hanzhong Road R RHAE
Jianye District EHE
Nanjing E R 895
Jiangsu Province 2 EBIRR Pk
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") 21BAIE
3. Unit No. 2601 on Level 26 M Commercial  Medium 100%
South Tower ERA [HE3:! term lease
Guangzhou World Trade Centre Complex &N REHE
Nos. 371-375 Huanshi East Road IR R K371 23755
Dongshan District =i
Guangzhou BNt RE SR HKRE
Guangdong Province 7 B
PRC 26122601 E
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFEBBESE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling AT AREEBEAENREE 2 2EURE
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from & - BENMIEEHIHESZWE - HEEED
the published audited financial statements and reclassified/restated as  F)2 2 K EZ T HHE WD EASHEF D
appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the — #8, /&5l o HEFE I THER S EBAZ G RE H

audited financial statements. FES o
RESULTS 4

Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“E-—-f ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTEN\F —TELF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET TET

CONTINUING OPERATIONS BELEEK
REVENUE WA 391,209 338,851 400,012 376,386 328,472
Cost of sales and services HE RRISAKA (284,194) (225,741) (280,372) (261,894) (228,474)
Gross profit E7 107,015 113,110 119,640 114,492 99,998
Other income and gains, net EmA Rz 24,262 8,152 2,823 14,689 12,383
Fair value gains/(losses), net: ATEWE/ (BR)FE -

Financial assets at fair value through IR ATAELEZAE Y

profit or loss NBAE (5,858) 615 4,272 (5,406) (358)
Derivative financial instruments — PTEMBIA-
transactions not qualifying as hedges ~ FABBIEE R I X5 72 (202) - - -

Investment properties REME 9,068 7,440 2,836 (1,146) 4530
Selling and distribution costs HERDELA (33,097) (31,797) (33,069) (34,069) (35,414)
General and administrative expenses —REATHEY (44,424) (41,572) (45,711) (48,731) (51,540)
Finance costs HHER (545) (39) - - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM FECE RS

CONTINUING OPERATIONS BB AT 56,493 55,707 50,791 39,829 29,599
Income tax expense RS (4,949) (6,650) (6,908) (5,172) (814)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM TEERERE

CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEEB R 51,544 49,057 43,883 34,657 28,785
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRI REER
Loss for the year from a AEEREEELE

discontinued operation meEK BR - - - (2,118) (814)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEREH 51,544 49,057 43,883 32,539 27,971
Attributable to: THALIER -

Owner of the parent (SYNSEFSUN 51,544 49,057 43,880 33,067 28,142

Non-controlling interests IR - - 3 (528) (171)

51,544 49,057 43,883 32,539 27,971
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued)

TEMBHE(R)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

BE  BENRFEHMNES

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-AH
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“E-—% CZT-TF ZETHNF ZTTN\F CZTTtH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT FET FAT TET
TOTAL ASSETS BERE 524,018 515,582 459,900 427 505 414176
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (139,918) (145874)  (108,888) (91,779) (84,881)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS Pl - - - 753 (879)
384,100 369,708 351,012 336,479 328416
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